
Committee Agenda   

1 

 
 
Cabinet 
Monday, 13th November, 2006 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Committee Secretary: Gary Woodhall (Research and Democratic Services) 

Email: gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel:01992 564470 
 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs D Collins (Chairman), C Whitbread (Vice-Chairman) A Green, Mrs A Grigg, 
J Knapman, S Metcalfe, Mrs M Sartin, D Stallan and Ms S Stavrou 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE THE START TIME OF THE MEETING THE COUNCIL HAS AGREED 
REVISED PROCEDURES FOR THE OPERATION OF CABINET MEETINGS.  BUSINESS 

NOT CONCLUDED BY 10.00 P.M. WILL, AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN, 
STAND REFERRED TO THE NEXT MEETING OR WILL BE VOTED UPON WITHOUT 

DEBATE 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services) To declare interests in any item on 
this agenda. 
 

 3. MINUTES   
 

  To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 4 September 2006 
(previously circulated). 
 

 4. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 
and 24 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary 
agenda of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 

 



Cabinet  13 November 2006 
 

2 

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks’ notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 5. REPORTS OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS   
 

  To receive oral reports from Portfolio Holders on current issues concerning 
their Portfolios, which are not covered elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

 6. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY   
 

  To consider any matters of concern to the Cabinet arising from the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny function. 
 

 7. FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT CABINET COMMITTEE  - 17 
JULY 2006  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
  (Chairman of the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee) To 

consider the minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 2006 and the recommendations 
therein (C/069/2006-07). 
 

 8. FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT CABINET COMMITTEE - 25 
SEPTEMBER 2006  (Pages 11 - 18) 

 
  (Chairman of the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee) To 

consider the minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2006 and the 
recommendations therein (C/070/2006-07). 
 

 9. FREE SATURDAY CAR PARKING  (Pages 19 - 24) 
 

  (Civil Engineering and Maintenance Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report 
(C/067/2006-07). 
 

 10. POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING - PIKE WAY, 
NORTH WEALD  (Pages 25 - 28) 

 
  (Housing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C/071/2006-07). 

 
 11. ACCEPTANCE OF TENDER - COMMUNAL COLD-WATER STORAGE TANK 

REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME 2006/07  (Pages 29 - 30) 
 

  (Housing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C/072/2006-07). 
 

 12. SPRINGFIELDS IMPROVEMENT SCHEME - REPURCHASE OF LEASEHOLD 
FLAT  (Pages 31 - 32) 

 
  (Housing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C/073/2006-07). 

 
 13. PROVISION OF SOCIAL HOUSING GRANT TO PROVIDE AFFORDABLE 

HOUSING - THE QUARTER, CHIPPING ONGAR  (Pages 33 - 36) 
 

  (Housing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C/074/2006-07). 
 

 14. CONSULTATION PLAN 2006/07  (Pages 37 - 60) 



Cabinet  13 November 2006 
 

3 

 
  (Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services Portfolio 

Holder) To consider the attached report (C/075/2006-07). 
 

 15. GAMBLING ACT 2005 - ADOPTION OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES AND 
CONSEQUENTIAL CHANGES TO THE LICENSING SYSTEM  (Pages 61 - 66) 

 
  (Environmental Protection Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report 

(C/078/2006-07). 
 

 16. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT LAND SALE - MERLIN WAY, NORTH WEALD  
(Pages 67 - 70) 

 
  (Leader of the Council) To consider the attached report (C/076/2006-07). 

 
 17. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS - LANGSTON ROAD INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, 

LOUGHTON  (Pages 71 - 82) 
 

  (Leader of the Council) To consider the attached report (C/077/2006-07). 
 

 18. RE-USE OF PUBLIC SECTOR INFORMATION REGULATIONS AND ICT  (Pages 
83 - 88) 

 
  (Customer Services, Media, Communications and ICT Portfolio Holder) To consider 

the attached report (C/079/2006-07). 
 

 19. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

20 Leisure Management 
Contract – Epping Sports 
Centre 

3 

 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining 
the exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 
24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 



Cabinet  13 November 2006 
 

4 

discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall 
proceed to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after 

the completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted 
for report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the 
subject matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 20. LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT - EPPING SPORTS CENTRE  (Pages 89 - 
92) 

 
  (Leisure and Young People Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report 

(C/080/2006-07). 
 



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee 

Date: Monday, 17 July 2006 

   
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping Time: 6.15  - 7.08 pm 

Members
Present:

Councillors J Knapman (Chairman), Mrs A Grigg and C Whitbread 

Other
Councillors:

Apologies: Councillors Mrs D Collins and S Metcalfe 

Officers
Present:

Peter Haywood (Joint Chief Executive), Bob Palmer (Head of Finance), 
Derek Macnab (Head of Leisure Services), Joe Akerman (Chief Internal 
Auditor), Ian Willett (Head of Research and Democratic Services) and 
Graham Lunnun (Democratic Services Manager) 

12. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 19 June 2006 be 
taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

No declarations of interest were made pursuant to the Council's Code of Conduct. 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting. 

15. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GROUP  

The Committee considered the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Governance 
Group held on 7 June 2006. 

RESOLVED: 

 That the issues considered by the Corporate Governance Group be noted. 

16. INTERNAL AUDIT - MONITORING REPORT - APRIL/JUNE 2006 AND WORK 
PROGRAMME - JULY/SEPTEMBER 2006  

The Committee considered a report which summarised the work undertaken by 
Internal Audit between April and June 2006.  The report also contained the work plan 
for the second quarter of the current financial year and a status report on previous 
audit recommendations. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



Finance and Performance Management                               Monday, 17 July 2006  
Cabinet Committee 

2

Members noted that sickness in the Unit during the first quarter of 2006/07 amounted 
to 35 days, the vast majority of which related to the certificated long-term sickness of 
one member of the team.  Sickness continued to be monitored and managed in 
accordance with the Council's Management of Absence policy. 

During the quarter, audit reports had been issued in respect of the following: 

(a) Safer Communities Team Building Day (Investigation); 

(b) Stores Stocktake and Report; 

(c) Norway House; 

(d) Planning Cash Receipting; 

(e) BVPI Verification; 

(f) Car Parking Contract; 

(g) IT Procurement; 

(h) Benefit Fraud Investigation; 

(i) Establishment List; 

(j) Use of Consultants (draft report); 

(k) Cash Receipting (draft report); 

(l) Sundry Debtors (follow up); 

(m) OHMS Housing Management System (follow up). 

In addition, the Audit Team had also provided support to management on a number 
of corporate issues and had performed a range of tasks including standing 
membership of Project Teams.  The topic areas included the production of the 
Council's draft Statutory Statement on Internal Control, and Membership of the 
Officer Use of Resources and Value for Money Working Groups.  There had also 
been close involvement in a range of control issues surrounding the transfer of the 
Waste Management Contract, including the verification of the staff TUPE list.  The 
Unit's annual report for 2005/06 had been prepared, and a national benchmarking 
return had been submitted to assist in the production of comparative data about audit 
activity and performance across the country. 

The Chief Internal Auditor advised that members had indicated that they would be 
looking for an improvement this year from the "satisfactory" assurance which he had 
given in relation to the Council's control systems in 2005/06, particularly as this 
assessment was a factor in the Council's annual Statement on Internal Control.  The 
Committee noted that the main conclusions from the systems audits undertaken in 
the first quarter of 2006/07 indicated that systems were generally operating 
satisfactorily in those areas reviewed, and that no fundamental errors or control 
issues had been identified.  However, an investigation had highlighted a number of 
compliance and supervisory issues, to be addressed by the service area concerned.  
A number of recommendations for process improvement across services had been 
identified, including controls over corporate debt recovery, cash handling and system 
reconciliations.  These had been taken up with the service areas concerned. 

Page 6



Finance and Performance Management                               Monday, 17 July 2006  
Cabinet Committee 

3

The Chief Internal Auditor and the Head of Research and Democratic Services 
answered members' questions in relation to the investigation into the Safer 
Communities Team Building Day in September 2005.  Members noted the 
managerial changes which had been taken by the Head of Research and Democratic 
Services as a result of the investigation including a request to the Head of Human 
Resources and Performance Management for the production of guidance in relation 
to the holding of Team Building events. 

In relation to the investigation into the Stores Stocktake, members noted that 
management would be reviewing the recording system and related processes in 
order to identify ways of applying greater control.  This would need to include a value 
for money judgement and progress would be reported to a future meeting of the 
Committee.

Attention was drawn to a schedule designed to monitor the follow-up of previous 
audits as an aid to ensuring timely and adequate follow-up both by Internal Audit and 
Service Management.  Members noted that all of the recommended actions for 
system improvement arising from a previous investigation, and reported throughout 
the last financial year, had now been taken.  The residual list of items reported at the 
last meeting, relating to the production of an annual report in respect of Section 106 
Planning Agreements, and the production of a Staff Code of Conduct had both been 
addressed.  The Section 106 report had been submitted to the District Development 
Control Committee in June and a draft Staff Code of Conduct was to be submitted to 
the next meeting of the Joint Consultative Committee. 

The Committee noted the work plan for July-September 2006 and the current status 
of all the planned audits in the year's Audit Plan. 

The Committee considered the Unit's performance in relation to the local 
performance indicator targets for 2006/07.  Members noted that the target cost per 
audit day for the first quarter had not been met, partly due to the effect of having half 
a post vacant, which affected the recovery of fixed overheads.  The Chief Internal 
Auditor advised that it was proposed to increase this unit cost target to £285.00 for 
2006/07, to reflect the impact of overhead recovery, of the reduction in half a post, 
agreed during the latter stages of the 2006/07 budget process. 

The Committee noted training undertaken by members of the Unit during the first 
quarter of the current financial year. 

RECOMMENDED: 

(1) That the reports issued and significant findings between April and May 
2006 be noted; 

(2) That the audit follow-up status report be noted; 

(3) That the work plan for July to September 2006 be noted; 

(4) That the 2006/07 audit plan status report be noted;  and 

(5) That the action taken by officers in relation to the investigation be 
supported.

Page 7



Finance and Performance Management                               Monday, 17 July 2006  
Cabinet Committee 

4

17. RISK MANAGEMENT - STRATEGY AND POLICY  

The Committee considered a Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement 
identifying corporate and operational risks; assessing the risks for likelihood and 
impact; identifying mitigating control; and allocating responsibility for the mitigating 
controls.  Members were advised that a draft of the Policy Statement had been 
presented to the Council's Risk Management Group and the feedback from this 
Group and advice given by Zurich Municipal, the Council's insurers and providers of 
risk management training, had contributed to the Policy Statement before members.  
Zurich Municipal and AON (the Council's Insurance Brokers) had also contributed to 
the Risk Management Strategy. 

The Committee also received the terms of reference of the Risk Management Group. 

RECOMMENDED: 

(1) That the Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement be 
adopted;  and 

(2) That the terms of reference of the Risk Management Group be noted. 

18. RISK MANAGEMENT - CORPORATE ACTION PLANS  

The Head of Finance reported that the Cabinet at its meeting on 7 June 2006 had 
resolved that the Corporate Risk Register produced by Zurich Municipal be adopted.  
The Cabinet had also resolved that Action Plans be submitted to this Committee for 
approval and that twice a year the Corporate Risk Register be submitted to the 
Committee for review. 

The Committee noted the process undertaken to produce Action Plans.  The Head of 
Finance reported that the Action Plans set out for each risk: 

(a) details of existing controls/actions to address risk; 

(b) assessment of the effectiveness of the controls/actions; 

(c) the required further management action; 

(d) who was responsible for the actions; 

(e) what the critical success factors and measures were;  and 

(f) the frequency of review and any key dates. 

The Committee noted that in addition to the reporting requirements already agreed 
by members, the officer Corporate Governance Group had suggested the need for 
Action Plans to be kept up-to-date through more regular reviews.  Consequently, 
once the Action Plans had been approved it was proposed that they would be 
discussed on a monthly basis at Senior Management Team and Management Board 
would have a standing item on their weekly agenda for Risk Management. 

Members noted that the first six monthly update of the Corporate Risk Register would 
be presented to the next meeting of the Committee on 25 September 2006 and that 
at that meeting members would be asked to confirm a re-prioritisation of the risks 
which would include any new risks that had been identified. 

Page 8



Finance and Performance Management                               Monday, 17 July 2006  
Cabinet Committee 

5

The Committee requested that steps be taken to provide members with a more 
regular input into the process. 

RESOLVED: 

(1) That the Action Plans to accompany the Corporate Risk Register be 
noted;  and 

(2) That officers report to a future meeting of this Committee on proposals 
for increased involvement of members in the process. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee 

Date: Monday, 25 September 
2006

   
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping Time: 6.00  - 8.15 pm 

Members
Present:

Councillors J Knapman (Chairman), S Metcalfe and C Whitbread 

Other
Councillors:

Councillor D Jacobs 

Apologies: Councillor Mrs D Collins 

Officers
Present:

P Haywood (Joint Chief Executive), R Palmer (Head of Finance), J Gilbert 
(Head of Environmental Services), J Akerman (Chief Internal Auditor), P 
Maddock (Assistant Head of Finance), G Lunnun (Democratic Services 
Manager).

Also
Present:

P King and L Wishart (Audit Commission)(for minutes 19-23 inc.) 

19. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 11 January 2006 
and 17 July 2006 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record.

20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

No declarations of interest were made pursuant to the Council's Code of Conduct. 

21. MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER  

The Head of Finance reported that for several years the Audit Commission had 
required a management representation letter as part of the evidence gathered to 
support their Audit opinion.  The 2005/06 Statement of Accounts had been audited in 
accordance with the new International Standards on Auditing which required that the 
committee charged with governance should formally acknowledge the management 
representation letter. 

The Committee considered an explanation of the Audit Commission's requirements 
together with a draft management representation letter which had been based on a 
standard draft supplied by the Audit Commission. 

RESOLVED: 

That the draft management representation letter be approved and the Head of 
Finance be authorised to sign and submit the letter to the Audit Commission 
on behalf of the Council. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 11



            Finance and Performance Management                 Monday, 25 September 2006 
            Cabinet Committee 

2

22. AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS - INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS ON AUDITING  

P King reported that he was required by the Audit Commission's Statutory Code of 
Audit Practice for Local Government bodies to issue a report to those charged with 
governance summarising the conclusions of his audit work.  He was also required by 
professional auditing standards to report on certain matters before he was able to 
give an opinion on the financial statements. 

The Committee noted that the principal purposes of the report were: 

(a) to reach a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the respective 
responsibilities of the Auditor and the Committee; 

(b) to share information to assist both the Auditor and those charged with 
governance to fulfil their respective responsibilities;  and 

(c) to provide the Committee with recommendations for improvement arising from 
the audit process. 

P King reported that work on the financial statements was substantially complete 
although there were still some outstanding issues to be resolved.  In particular, work 
on the Pension Fund had yet to be concluded.  He advised that should any further 
matters arise in concluding the outstanding work that required reporting he would 
raise them with the Chairman of this Committee.  Members noted that the standard of 
the draft accounts and supporting working papers were a significant improvement on 
the previous year.  P King advised that, subject to the satisfactory conclusion on the 
outstanding work, he anticipated being able to issue an unqualified opinion by 
30 September 2006. 

P King reported that in order to assist the Committee in fulfilling its governance 
responsibilities, he was required to report adjusted misstatements where these were 
material.  He pointed out a material misstatement that management had adjusted in 
relation to the Pension Fund.  The omission of the March Pension Fund gain from the 
actuarial valuation of the fund had moved the position from an actuarial loss for the 
year of £1,121,000 to an actuarial gain for the year of £1,215,000.  This had reduced 
the pension liability on the balance sheet and the negative pension reserve from 
£37,389,000 to £35,053,000 with corresponding amendments to the relevant notes to 
the balance sheet.  He advised that the initial figures had been provided by Essex 
County Council based on the actuarial valuation supplied by the County Council's 
actuary.  The District Council had been notified of the error by the County Council at 
the beginning of September 2006.  P King advised that a common statement about 
this issue was being included in reports on other Essex Districts and he did not 
intend to penalise the District Council but his work was subject to an internal check 
by the Audit Commission which could result in a different finding.  He emphasised 
that he felt this would be unlikely as it would be unfair to penalise District Councils for 
the County Council's error.  Members discussed the issue and noted that the District 
Council did not have the expertise which would have enabled them to identify this 
error.

P King reported that work on the Authority's arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources was now complete and he 
anticipated being able to issue a qualified conclusion on the use of resources by 30 
September 2006.  He explained that the opinion would be qualified because the 
arrangements in place to manage the Council's significant business risks during 
2005/06 and the arrangements to manage and improve value for money at that time 
had been assessed as not meeting the relevant criteria.  The processes put in place 

Page 12



            Finance and Performance Management                 Monday, 25 September 2006 
            Cabinet Committee 

3

by the Council after 31 March 2006 could not be counted as evidence.  Members 
noted that there were ten other aspects in relation to use of resources which were 
satisfactory.

P King expressed his appreciation for the Council's assistance and co-operation 
during the audit. 

 RECOMMENDED: 

 (1) That the report be noted;  and 

(2) That the recommendations and action plan regarding maintenance of 
the improvements to the arrangements for risk management and value for 
money be agreed. 

23. AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE - PROPOSED ESTABLISHMENT  

The Committee considered a report regarding the establishment of an Audit and 
Governance Committee.  Members noted that CIPFA had, in recent years, 
emphasised the importance of audit committees as a key source of assurance 
regarding an authority's arrangements for managing risk, maintaining an effective 
control environment and reporting on financial and other performance.  Some of the 
benefits to be gained from operating an effective audit committee included: 

(a) raising greater awareness of the need for internal control and the 
implementation of audit recommendations; 

(b) increasing public confidence in the objectivity and fairness of financial and 
non-financial reporting; 

(c) reinforcing the importance and independence of internal and external audit 
and any other similar review processes (for example, providing a view on the 
statement of accounts and statement on internal control);  and 

(d) providing assurance through a process of independent and objective review. 

The Chief Internal Auditor reported that the Council had been assessed at level 2 in 
accordance with the Audit Commission's Use of Resources Assessment model.  To 
move to level 3 it would be necessary to demonstrate that the Council had an audit 
committee that provided a challenge to the executive when required and provided for 
effective leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  In order to 
perform this role the audit committee would need to operate independently from the 
executive.

The Committee gave initial consideration to the possible terms of reference, size and 
proportionality requirements of an audit committee.  Members emphasised the need 
for the proposed committee to be made up of members with sufficient skills and 
suggested that there would be benefit in considering the appointment of one or more 
co-opted members.  Members also recognised that careful consideration would need 
to be given to the terms of reference of the proposed committee, this Cabinet 
Committee and the Standards Committee in order to avoid undue duplication.  
Members suggested that the Chairman of this Cabinet Committee should be 
expected to attend all meetings of the proposed committee in a non-voting capacity. 

Page 13



            Finance and Performance Management                 Monday, 25 September 2006 
            Cabinet Committee 

4

RESOLVED: 

(1) That the establishment of an Audit and Governance Committee be 
agreed, in principle; 

(2) That consultation be undertaken with Overview and Scrutiny through 
the Constitution and Member Services Scrutiny Standing Panel;  and 

(3) That further consideration be given to the establishment of an Audit 
and Governance Committee at a future meeting taking account of the views 
of the Constitution and Member Services Scrutiny Standing Panel. 

24. BUSINESS AND INTERNAL CONTROL ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK  

The Committee considered a report proposing the adoption of the Council's draft 
Business and Internal Control Assurance Framework. 

The Chief Internal Auditor reported that the Council was seeking continued 
improvement in the Council's governance arrangements and that to achieve as 
higher rating as possible under the CPA arrangements, it was necessary to put in 
place an assurance framework that mapped the Council's strategic objectives to 
risks, controls and assurances as a supporting document to the Statutory Statement 
on Internal Control.  Members noted that the Council already had effective processes 
dealing with the various elements of the control framework and the main purpose of 
the assurance framework document was to bring these elements together. 

RECOMMENDED:

That the Council's draft Business and Internal Control Assurance Framework 
be adopted. 

25. CAPITAL STRATEGY - 2006-2011  

The Committee considered a draft Capital Strategy for 2006-2011. 

Members noted that it was no longer necessary for the Council to submit the Capital 
Strategy to the Government Office for assessment but that there was an expectation 
that the strategy would continue to be produced and updated.  Whilst there was no 
requirement to update the strategy annually, it was felt important to do so in order to 
ensure that it was kept up to date.  A good capital strategy enabled the Council to 
make sound strategic decisions in relation to its use of capital resources and formed 
an important part of the Council's performance management and financial planning 
frameworks.

The Head of Finance reported that no major changes were proposed to the format or 
text of the Capital Strategy.  He advised that the strategy had been updated with 
current schemes and expenditure forecasts as contained within the latest Capital 
Programme approved by the Cabinet on 4 September 2006.  He drew attention to 
changes which had taken place since that time and to two reports which had been 
prepared for the Cabinet in October 2006 requesting supplementary capital 
estimates.

RECOMMENDED: 

(1) That the draft Capital Strategy 2006-2011 be approved and 
recommended to the Council for adoption including: 

Page 14



            Finance and Performance Management                 Monday, 25 September 2006 
            Cabinet Committee 

5

(a) an additional estimate of £35,000 in 2007/08 for the purchase of a 
replacement plate maker for the Reprographics Section;  and 

(b) an additional estimate of £143,000 (from 2007/08 to 2010/11) for 
works to be carried out at the Civic Offices; 

(2) That no funding for Phases 3 and 4 of the Loughton High Road Town 
Centre Enhancement be included at this time and that some of the funding for 
the Customer Services Transformation Programme be deferred in the 
Strategy but these schemes be subject to ongoing review; 

(3) That no change be made to the Council's key capital priorities ranked 
in the order approved in November 2005; 

(4) That as no schemes have been brought forward and no savings have 
been identified from elsewhere in order to fund the additional £500,000 
contribution to affordable housing approved by the Cabinet in 2006, that 
contribution be excluded from the Strategy;  and 

(5) That the Strategy be subject to continuous review and that in relation 
to any schemes where there is not a contractual commitment, officers 
consider whether those schemes should continue to go forward and/or 
whether start dates should be revised and that reports be made to members 
on any proposed changes. 

26. BUDGET 2007/08 - FINANCIAL ISSUES PAPER  

The Committee considered a report regarding a framework for the budget 2007/08 
including a number of issues that would affect the Council in the short to medium 
term.

Members were advised that the following matters represented the greatest areas of 
current financial uncertainty and risk to the authority: 

(a) changes to the waste service and higher recycling targets; 

(b) capitalisation of pension deficit payments; 

(c) Customer Services Transformation Programme; 

(d) changes to the strategy Concessionary Fares scheme; 

(e) future local government finance settlements; 

(f) restriction on future Council Tax increases; 

(g) ongoing difficulties with recruitment and retention;  and 

(h) generation of future capital receipts. 

Members received an updated four year forecast for the General Fund, based on 
adjusting the balances for the 2005/06 underspend, analysing information gained 
from the recent outturn figures and adjusting future years accordingly.  The predicted 
balance at 1 April 2007 of £5.328m represented just over 32% of the anticipated net 
budget requirement and was therefore somewhat higher than the Council's current 

Page 15



            Finance and Performance Management                 Monday, 25 September 2006 
            Cabinet Committee 

6

policy of 25%.  However, the additional costs that were likely to be incurred on the 
refuse and street cleansing contract would result in the predicted balance being 
reduced to £2.65m by 1 April 2009.  This would represent only 15% of the net budget 
requirement for 2009/10. 

The Head of Finance reported that the deterioration in the financial position indicated 
a need for savings to be identified or the Council Tax to be increased above current 
target levels during the next four years. 

In relation to CSB expenditure, members were reminded that the Council's policy was 
not to rely on the use of balances to provide support, with CSB expenditure being 
financed only from Government grant and Council Tax income.  This meant that 
effectively the level of Council Tax would dictate the net expenditure on CSB or the 
CSB would dictate the level of Council Tax.  As members had previously indicated 
that future Council Tax increases should be at or below the increase in the Retail 
Price Index, assumed to be 2.5% for the near future, it was clear that the former 
would be the determinate.  Although the original budget for 2006/07 had achieved 
that objective, with funding from Government grants and local taxpayers exceeding 
CSB by £540,000, the revised estimate for this year now showed the CSB total at 
£16.78m, which exceeded funding by £0.98m.  This revision was primarily based on 
the increased level of costs for the Waste Management and Street Cleansing 
Contract and showed that there was a need for CSB net expenditure to be reduced 
or tax increases to be raised. 

Members noted that a decision was still awaited from central Government on the 
Council's application for a capitalisation direction in relation to the funding 
requirements for the Pension Fund in 2006/07.  It was also proposed to submit an 
application for 2007/08 and it was possible that a direction might not be obtained for 
either or both years.  If this were to be the case it would be necessary to seek 
substantial savings elsewhere or to increase significantly the Council Tax.  Members 
noted that the risk of a direction not being granted had increased following the issue 
of amended guidance from the Department for Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG).  Members further noted that the DCLG would not be informing authorities 
about their applications for 2006/07 until 31 January 2007. 

The Head of Finance advised that the revised four year forecast included all 
supplementary estimates that had been approved by the Council to date.  He 
cautioned that the Customer Services Transformation Programme had gained 
support in principle from the Cabinet on 10 July 2006 but that the necessary financial 
provision had not yet gained Council approval. 

The Committee noted the uncertainties about the cost of the Concessionary Fares 
Scheme in 2006/07 and 2007/08.  In addition the scheme would in any event cost 
more from 1 April 2008 when concessionary fares would not be restricted to scheme 
boundaries. 

The Committee noted that estimated DDF expenditure over the period to 2009/10 
would consume all remaining balances and transfers from the General Fund balance 
would be necessary to fund DDF items.  The four-year forecast approved by the 
Council on 21 February 2006 had predicted a DDF balance of £1m at the end of 
2009/10.  However, DDF supplementary estimates of £995,000 had been approved 
to date in 2006/07.  Members were advised that given the limited funding available 
from the DDF, only high priority projects should be funded from it and that further 
requests could not be supported unless additional funds were made available. 

Page 16



            Finance and Performance Management                 Monday, 25 September 2006 
            Cabinet Committee 

7

 RECOMMENDED: 

 (1) That the 2007/08 budget guidelines be as follows: 

(a) the ceiling for CSB net expenditure be no more than £17m including 
net growth; 

(b) that as part of the budget setting process all items included within the 
DDF be reviewed; 

(c) that balances continue to be aligned to the Council's net budget 
requirement and that balances be allowed to fall no lower than 25% of the net 
budget requirement; 

(d) the District Council Tax to be increased by no more than the rate of 
increase in the Retail Price Index; 

(2) That a revised medium term financial strategy for the period 2009/10 
be developed in accordance with (1) above;  and 

(3) That communication of the revised medium term financial strategy to 
staff, partners and other stakeholders be undertaken by way of publishing key 
bullet points in appropriate publications. 

27. RISK MANAGEMENT  

The Committee considered an update to the Corporate Risk Register and the action 
plans.

RESOLVED: 

That the proposed amendments be agreed. 

28. VALUE FOR MONEY SELF ASSESSMENT 2006  

The Committee was advised that as part of the Audit Commission's annual 
evaluation of the Council's use of resources, the Authority was required to complete a 
value for money self assessment for submission to the Commission before the end of 
September 2006.  A draft self-assessment was tabled at the meeting. 

RESOLVED: 

(1) That the Council's draft self-assessment in respect of the annual 
Value for Money exercise be endorsed for immediate submission to the Audit 
Commission;  and 

(2) That the draft Value for Money self-assessment be referred to the 
Cabinet at its next meeting for formal adoption and that any views expressed 
by members be passed to the Audit Commission. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:  C/067/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:  13 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:  Civil Engineering & Maintenance. 
 
Subject:  Free Saturday Car Parking. 
 
Officer contact for further information:  John Gilbert   (01992 – 56 4062). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:   Gary Woodhall  (01992 – 56 4470). 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

(1) To retain car parking charges in the Council’s short stay car parks but 
provide free car parking on Saturdays in the Council’s long stay and combined 
car parks as set out in paragraph 11 of the report; 

 
(2) To make any necessary changes to the existing traffic regulation orders; 
and 

 
(3) To note the revenue consequences of approximately £75,150 (CSB) per 
annum and the one off cost of £10,000 (DDF) for signage and traffic regulation 
orders. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Report: 
 
1. One of the new Administration’s 6 “Key Messages” is the provision of free car parking 
on Saturdays as a way of providing further support to the District’s town centres.  Free 
parking is already provided on Saturdays throughout the District during December each year 
as part of supporting the Christmas trading period. 
 
2. There are a number of factors that need to be considered in determining the most 
appropriate strategy for the provision of free parking: 
 
(a) should all car parks be free, given that those owned by Sainsbury’s but managed by 
the Council will have to be excluded? 

 
(b) should the free parking allow for an unlimited stay during Saturday or should there be 
a maximum period of free parking? And 

 
(c) what are the costs through lost income and the processes involved in change? 
 
3. The Council manages 22 car parks, 20 of which it also owns.  The short stay car 
parks at Sainsbury’s in Loughton and Ongar are owned by Sainsbury’s but are managed by 
the Council.  Sainsbury’s retain the income generated, but the Council levies a 10% 
management fee and retains all penalty charge notice (PCN) income.  Sainsbury’s operate a 
refund of up to 2 hours parking if customers spend beyond a certain amount in the store, 
thereby making the car parking free for the majority of shoppers.  There are a number of 
privately owned and operated car parks which the public can use, notably those associated 
with Waitrose at Buckhurst Hill, Tesco at Waltham Abbey and Epping, and Marks and 

The Task and Finish Panel looking at Town Centres & Parking have considered this 
report and the views of that Panel and Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be 
reported at the meeting. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 19



Spencer in Loughton.  
 
4. The Council’s car parks are categorised as: 
 
• short stay;  
• long stay; and 
• combined (have both short & long stay tariffs). 
 
Short stay car parks are intended, as the name suggests, for short visits and tariffs are set 
accordingly to discourage long term usage.  Conversely, long stay tariffs are set to 
encourage long usage although a 2 hour stay can be had in both types for the same tariff 
(£1.20).  Combined car parks utilise the short stay tariff for stays up to 2 hours and the long 
stay tariff thereafter.  This enables better car park utilisation of otherwise less used car parks. 
 
The Appendix sets out the car parks, the number of spaces and the category. 
 
5. There is already some free car parking within the District, at the Broadway (Burton 
Road and Vere Road), in Roydon and at Quaker Lane in Waltham Abbey, where there are 24 
free spaces operating with a 2 hour no return within 3 limitation.  There are no limits in 
Roydon or at The Broadway although the town centre enhancement proposals will bring into 
place a time limited pay and display regime.  There are also free car parks associated with 
supermarkets and village halls etc. 
 
Income On Saturdays: 
 
6. Officers have undertaken a detailed study of income generated on Saturdays.  The 
analysis shows that approximately £2,900 of income is generated from all car parks 
(excluding both Sainsbury’s) on a Saturday.  Allowing for the fact that Saturdays in December 
are already free this amounts to approximately £140,000 per annum.  Of this approximately 
60% (£84,000) is generated in the short stay car parks and 40% (£56,000) in the long 
stay/combined car parks.  Further income is generated from PCNs which approximates to 
£43,500 per annum.  This can be broken down into 56% short stay (£24,350) and 44% long 
stay/combined (£19,150). 
 
7. The Saturday income from the Council’s only on-street pay and display regime in 
Queens Road Buckhurst Hill generates around £12,000 per annum based on 18 pay and 
display machines.  This equates to approximately £670 per machine per annum.  Whilst 
direct comparisons are difficult, the presently agreed proposals for The Broadway and 
Loughton High Road include the provision of on-street pay and display regimes, and the 
installation of  14 machines.  Using the figures from Queens Road, this would generate an 
additional £9,400 in income.  The income from PCNs at Buckhurst Hill is approximately 
£6,000 per annum or £330 per machine.  Taking this forward to The Broadway and Loughton 
High Road would realise PCN income of approximately £4,600 per annum.  It should be 
noted that the on-street income is ring fenced to meet initially the County Council set up costs 
of decriminalisation and then by law to parking or related environmental matters. 
 
8. The above can be summarised as follows: 
 
 Short stay Long stay & 

combined 
 

Total 
 

Off street P & D 84,000 56,000 140,000
Off street PCN 24,350 19,150 43,500
On street P & D 12,000 N/A 12,000
On street PCN 6,000 N/A 6,000
Future on street P & D 9,400 N/A
Future on street PCN 4,600 N/A
Total 140,350 75,150 215,500

Page 20



 
Enforcement Regime: 
 
9. It is important to determine whether the car parks are to be free all day for all to use or 
whether the free period is, as at Quaker Lane, to be time limited.  The free spaces at Quaker 
Lane operate all through the week and therefore the time limit is imposed to prevent their use 
by commuters or local employees.  This may not be considered necessary on a Saturday, 
although in towns with LUL Stations it is likely that free car parking all day will result in some 
long stay use by those not intending to shop locally.  However, current data indicates that the 
level of income from those staying more than 2 hours is very limited and this income would 
probably be outweighed by the costs of a more complicated enforcement regime.  A free 
Saturday regime would also be much simpler for the users to understand. 
 
Possible Saturday Regime: 
 
10. Given that two of the larger short stay car parks are in the ownership of Sainsbury’s 
and therefore cannot be included in a free regime and the fact that those shop based car 
parks under private management are required to operate as short stay car parks using a tariff 
broadly similar to the Councils, it is suggested that only the long stay and combined car parks 
should be free all day on Saturdays. 
 
11. This approach would provide free parking in all town centres as follows: 
 
Town centre 
 

Location 

(i) Loughton Traps Hill (197 spaces) and Smarts Lane (22 spaces) 
(ii) Buckhurst Hill Queens Road (lower) (100 spaces) 
(iii) Waltham Abbey Cornmill (197 spaces), Darby Drive (66 spaces) and 

Quaker Lane (24 spaces) 
(iv) Epping Bakers Lane (145 spaces) 
(v) Ongar The Pleasance (81 spaces) 
(vi) The Broadway To be decided as part of TCE arrangements (see later 

report) 
 
This regime would provide a significant amount of free parking at an approximate cost of 
£71,150 per annum, compared to £215,500 if free parking were to be provided all day in all of 
the Council’s car parks and on street locations.  There will be additional costs associated with 
new signage and amendments to TROs estimated at not more than £10,000 
 
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action: 
 
12. The recommended regime provides more than 800 free parking spaces in the town 
centres.  This should facilitate local shopping and support the town centre economies.  It also 
limits the loss of revenue to the Council’s general fund budget although no account has been 
taken of the ‘knock-on’ effects of the reduced use of the short stay car parks and on-street 
pay and display bays where the standard short stay tariffs would remain. 
 
Other Options For Action: 
 
13. The other options are essentially those set out the report, each of which provides 
additional degrees of free parking but also with an increased revenue loss to the Council.   
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
14. None. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget Provision: £10,000 (DDF) for amendments to the traffic order and new signage. 

Page 21



£71,500 (CSB) loss of income to the general fund. 
Personnel: Nil. 
Land: Nil. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP Reference: Supporting the local economy. 
Relevant Statutory Powers: Road Traffic Acts and associated regulations.  
 
Background Papers: N/A. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: N/A. 
Key Decision Reference (if required): N/A. 

Page 22



   O
ff 

St
re

et
 C

ar
 P

ar
k 

C
ha

rg
es

 w
ith

 e
ffe

ct
 fr

om
 1

st
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
C

ar
 P

ar
k 

S/
L 

0 
- 3

0 
m

in
ut

es
 

U
p 

to
 1

 
ho

ur
 

U
p 

to
 2

 
ho

ur
s 

O
ve

r 2
 

ho
ur

s 
U

p 
to

 3
 

ho
ur

s 
O

ve
r 3

 
ho

ur
s 

Se
as

on
  

1 
m

on
th

Se
as

on
   

 
3 

m
on

th
s 

Se
as

on
 

A
nn

ua
l 

B
ak

er
s 

La
ne

 - 
E

pp
in

g 
L 

 
 

£1
.2

0 
£2

.5
0 

 
 

£4
6.

00
 

£1
22

.5
0 

£4
28

.0
0 

B
an

so
ns

 L
an

e 
- O

ng
ar

 
S

 
£0

.1
0 

£0
.6

0 
£1

.2
0 

 
£2

.5
0 

£8
.0

0 
£1

25
.0

0 
£3

20
.0

0 
£1

27
5.

00
 

C
iv

ic
 O

ffi
ce

s 
[S

at
] -

 E
pp

in
g 

S
 

£0
.1

0 
£0

.6
0 

£1
.2

0 
 

£2
.5

0 
£8

.0
0 

 
 

 
C

or
nm

ill
 - 

W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
 

S
/L

 
£0

.1
0 

£0
.6

0 
£1

.2
0 

£2
.5

0 
 

 
£4

6.
00

 
£1

22
.5

0 
£4

28
.0

0 
C

ot
tis

 L
an

e 
- E

pp
in

g 
S

 
£0

.1
0 

£0
.6

0 
£1

.2
0 

 
£2

.5
0 

£8
.0

0 
£1

25
.0

0 
£3

20
.0

0 
£1

27
5.

00
 

D
ar

by
 D

riv
e 

- W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
 

S
 

£0
.1

0 
£0

.6
0 

£1
.2

0 
 

£2
.5

0 
£8

.0
0 

£1
25

.0
0 

£3
20

.0
0 

£1
27

5.
00

 
H

ig
h 

B
ea

ch
 R

oa
d 

- L
ou

gh
to

n 
S

 
£0

.1
0 

£0
.6

0 
£1

.2
0 

 
£2

.5
0 

£8
.0

0 
£1

25
.0

0 
£3

20
.0

0 
£1

27
5.

00
 

O
ld

 S
ta

tio
n 

R
oa

d 
- L

ou
gh

to
n 

S
 

£0
.1

0 
£0

.6
0 

£1
.2

0 
 

£2
.5

0 
£8

.0
0 

£1
25

.0
0 

£3
20

.0
0 

£1
27

5.
00

 
Q

ua
ke

r L
an

e 
- W

al
th

am
 A

bb
ey

  
S

 
£0

.1
0 

£0
.6

0 
£1

.2
0 

 
£2

.5
0 

£8
.0

0 
£1

25
.0

0 
£3

20
.0

0 
£1

27
5.

00
 

Q
ue

en
s 

R
oa

d 
[L

ow
er

] -
 B

.H
ill

 
L 

 
 

£1
.2

0 
£2

.5
0 

 
 

£4
6.

00
 

£1
22

.5
0 

£4
28

.0
0 

Q
ue

en
s 

R
oa

d 
[U

pp
er

] -
 B

.H
ill

 
S

 
£0

.1
0 

£0
.6

0 
£1

.2
0 

 
£2

.5
0 

£8
.0

0 
£1

25
.0

0 
£3

20
.0

0 
£1

27
5.

00
 

S
ai

ns
bu

ry
s 

- O
ng

ar
 

S
 

£0
.1

0 
£0

.6
0 

£1
.2

0 
 

£2
.5

0 
£8

.0
0 

£1
25

.0
0 

£3
20

.0
0 

£1
27

5.
00

 
S

m
ar

ts
 L

an
e 

- L
ou

gh
to

n 
L 

 
 

£1
.2

0 
£2

.5
0 

 
 

£4
6.

00
 

£1
22

.5
0 

£4
28

.0
0 

Th
e 

D
riv

e 
- L

ou
gh

to
n 

S
 

£0
.1

0 
£0

.6
0 

£1
.2

0 
 

£2
.5

0 
£8

.0
0 

£1
25

.0
0 

£3
20

.0
0 

£1
27

5.
00

 
Th

e 
P

le
as

an
ce

 - 
O

ng
ar

 
L 

 
 

£1
.2

0 
£2

.5
0 

 
 

£4
6.

00
 

£1
22

.5
0 

£4
28

.0
0 

Tr
ap

s 
H

ill
 - 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 
S

/L
 

£0
.1

0 
£0

.6
0 

£1
.2

0 
£2

.5
0 

 
 

£4
6.

00
 

£1
22

.5
0 

£4
28

.0
0 

 C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

Pa
rk

in
g 

Zo
ne

 C
ha

rg
es

 –
 Q

ue
en

s 
R

oa
d,

 B
uc

kh
ur

st
 H

ill
 w

ith
 e

ffe
ct

 fr
om

 1
st

 A
pr

il 
20

06
 

 
0 

– 
30

 m
in

ut
es

 
U

p 
to

 1
 h

ou
r 

U
p 

to
 2

 h
ou

rs
 

 
O

n 
S

tre
et

 P
ay

 a
nd

 D
is

pl
ay

  
£0

.1
0 

£0
.6

0 
£1

.2
0 

 
 

Fi
rs

t P
er

m
it 

Se
co

nd
 P

er
m

it 
Th

ird
 P

er
m

it 
 

R
es

id
en

ts
 P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

its
 

£2
5.

00
 

£5
0.

00
 

£1
00

.0
0 

 
 

0 
– 

30
 m

in
ut

es
 

U
p 

to
 1

 h
ou

r 
U

p 
to

 2
 h

ou
rs

 
U

p 
to

 4
 h

ou
rs

 
A

ll 
da

y 
- 4

+ 
ho

ur
s 

R
es

id
en

ts
 V

is
ito

rs
 P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

its
  

 
 

£0
.2

0 
£0

.5
0 

£1
.0

0 
  C

on
tr

ol
le

d 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Zo

ne
 C

ha
rg

es
 –

 C
lif

to
n 

R
oa

d,
 L

ou
gh

to
n 

w
ith

 e
ffe

ct
 fr

om
 1

st
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
 

Si
ng

le
 P

er
m

it 
 

 
 

R
es

id
en

ts
 P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

it 
£2

5.
00

 
 

 
 

 
0 

– 
30

 m
in

ut
es

 
U

p 
to

 1
 h

ou
r 

U
p 

to
 2

 h
ou

rs
 

U
p 

to
 4

 h
ou

rs
 

A
ll 

da
y 

- 4
+ 

ho
ur

s 
R

es
id

en
ts

 V
is

ito
rs

 P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
its

  
 

 
£0

.2
0 

£0
.5

0 
£1

.0
0 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:  C/071/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:  9 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:   Housing.  
 
Subject:  Potential Development for Affordable Housing – Pike Way, North Weald. 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Alan Hall   (01992 – 564004). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:   Gary Woodhall  (01992 – 56 4470). 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Council-owned land adjacent to 2 Pike Way, North Weald, held under 
Housing Act powers, not be developed in conjunction with 2 Pike Way to 
provide 100% affordable housing. 

 
 
Background 
 
1.  The Housing Needs Survey undertaken in 2003 assessed that 665 new affordable 
properties were required per annum over the following five years to meet both the current and 
anticipated housing need over that period.  However, in the three year period 2003/4 – 
2005/6, only 197 new affordable homes were completed (average of 65 homes per annum); 
only 25 new affordable homes will be completed in the current year.  As a result, there are 
now around 3,870 applicants on the Council’s Housing Register seeking affordable housing– 
an increase of over 160% from the 1,480 applicants registered in March 2002.  The Head of 
Housing Services has therefore been exploring all possibilities to secure more affordable 
housing within the District, using the very limited land available for new housing.      
 
2.   The Council owns around 0.17Ha of land adjacent to 2 Pike Way, North Weald, held 
under Housing Act powers, which is currently grassed and provides an amenity area to the 
entrance of Pike Way.  The Council sought planning permission to develop the land to 
provide three houses in 1982, which was refused.  Subsequent discussions in 2000 with the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development re-affirmed that planning permission for the 
development of the Council’s land alone would be unlikely, due to the overlooking of 2 Pike 
Way.  A plan of the site is attached. 
 
3.   Discussions have recently been held between the Head of Housing Services, Home 
Housing Association (one of the Council’s Preferred RSL Partners - formerly known as 
Warden Housing) and the owners of 2 Pike Way on the possibility of developing an affordable 
housing scheme on a combined site comprising 2 Pike Way (currently a detached house) and 
the Council’s land.  Home Housing was identified as the most appropriate housing 
association to take this proposal forward, in accordance with the Council’s Joint 
Commissioning Scheme.  This was because they have recently developed, and now own and 
manage, a number of affordable homes in Pike Way and adjacent Park Close. 
 
Development Potential: 
 
4.   A feasibility exercise has established that, in principle, Home could purchase 2 Pike 
Way at market value and redevelop the combined site to provide around 24 (100%) 
affordable flats.  However, this is subject to planning permission and, in accordance with its 
usual practice, the Council providing the land to Home free, in return for nominations rights.   
  
5.   Initial discussions with planning officers has established that, in planning terms, a 

Agenda Item 10

Page 25



development of 20-25 flats may be feasible, although detailed consideration would need to 
be given by planning officers on the number of properties that would be acceptable, if the 
proposal was pursued. 
 
6.   Based on a development of 24 flats, Home has undertaken two financial analyses – 
one assuming the receipt of social housing grant (£580,000) from the Housing Corporation 
and one assuming no receipt of grant.  This has established that the following mix of 
affordable housing could be provided: 
 
(a) Housing Corporation Grant:   

• 11 rented homes; and 
• 13 shared ownership homes (low cost home ownership); or 

 
(b) No Housing Corporation Grant:  

• 24 shared ownership homes. 
 

The Housing Portfolio Holder’s View: 
 
7.   The Housing Portfolio Holder has the advantage of also being one of the two ward 
members for North Weald.  He has carefully considered the proposal, in particular the 
potential benefit of increasing the amount of affordable housing in the District.  However, he 
has balanced this with the environmental impact of the proposal and, as a result, has 
concluded that the development of the Council’s land at this location would be inappropriate 
as it would remove an attractive grassed amenity area at the entrance to Pike Way and Park 
Close 
 
8.   Accordingly, the Housing Portfolio Holder is recommending that the development 
potential is not pursued any further. 
 
Statement in support of recommended action: 
 
9.   As set out in Paragraph 7 above. 
 
Other Options for Action: 
 
10.   The main options are as follows: 
 
(a)   Pursue the development potential  - It would need to agree to lease the land to 
Home Housing (or another RSL) for 125 years (or another period) at a peppercorn rent, 
subject to: Home Housing Association purchasing 2 Pike Way; the Council receiving 100% 
nominations rights initially and 75% for subsequent re-lets; receipt of planning permission; 
and compliance with the General Housing Consents 2005 under Section 25 of the Local 
Government Act 1988 (Local Authority Assistance for Privately Let Housing).  The covenant 
prohibiting the use of 2 Pike Way other than as a private dwelling house for single family 
occupation would need to be released and consent would need to be given to the erection of 
additional buildings on the site, in accordance with another covenant.  It would also be 
necessary to authorise the Head of Housing Services to agree the final number and tenure of 
the affordable housing provided on the combined development site, dependent on the 
outcome of the planning process and whether social housing grant can be obtained from the 
Housing Corporation. 
 
(b)   Pursue a less dense affordable housing scheme (perhaps houses) with less 
affordable housing – However, to make it viable, the amount of affordable housing would be 
significantly less than if around 24 flats were provided. 
 
(c)   Sell the land on the open market - The purchaser could then work with the owners 
of 2 Pike Way to undertake a joint private development on the site, perhaps with a lower 
density, without any affordable housing.  Although the Council would receive a capital receipt, 
under capital financial regulations, this would have to be used for affordable housing 

Page 26



purposes, or 50% would have to be passed to the Government under the pooling 
arrangements.        
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
11.   In accordance with the clarification of responsibilities for major/property development 
proposals affecting the Council’s property portfolios agreed at the last meeting of the Cabinet, 
since this is an issue affecting the Council’s property portfolio valued below £1 million, the 
Leader of the Council has been consulted on whether she wishes to be involved or take 
responsibility for dealing with the matter.  She has confirmed that she is happy for the 
Housing Portfolio Holder to take responsibility. 
 
12.   Councillor Mrs Grigg, the other ward member, has not been formally consulted on this 
proposal.  This is because, had the Portfolio Holder concluded - and the Cabinet agreed - 
that the development should be pursued, this could fetter her discretion to comment on the 
development at any future Area Plans Sub-Committee meeting. 
 
13.   The owners of 2 Pike Way have been consulted by Home and, subject to acceptable 
terms being agreed with Home, they are agreeable to the proposal. 
  
Resource implications:  
 
Budget Provision:  Nil. 
Personnel:  Nil 
Land:  Lease of 0.17Ha of Council land free, in return for nomination rights.  The open 
market valuation of the Council’s land has been estimated at £320,000. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP: Meeting Housing Need  
Relevant statutory powers:  Housing Act 1985 
 
Background papers:  Nil 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications:  Loss of 
grassed amenity area. 
Key Decision Reference (if required): N/A. 

Page 27



 Page 28



Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:  C/072/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:  13 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:       Housing. 
 
Subject:  Acceptance of Tender – Communal Cold-Water Storage Tank 

Replacement Programme 2006/07. 
 
Officer contact for further information:   Haydn Thorpe  (01992 – 56 4162). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:    Gary Woodhall  (01992 – 56 4470). 
 
Recommendations:   
 

(1) That, being the lowest tender received, Homesales Construction Ltd be 
awarded the Communal Cold-Water Storage Tank Replacement Contract for 
2006/07, at various addresses in Loughton and Woodford Bridge in the sum of 
£101,088,; and 

 
(2) That, in order to fund the shortfall in the existing Capital Programme, 
£28,000 be made available from the £311,000 savings reported to the Cabinet at 
its meeting in September resulting from the Wickfields stock transfer. 

 
Report: 
 
1. The existing communal cold-water storage tanks to 17 Council-owned low to medium-
rise blocks of flats are in poor condition, and have been identified from a water tank condition 
survey as being in need of replacing.  
 
2. Five tenders were sought from contractors included on Constructionline, who are able 
to carry out this type of work.  
 
3. The Housing Portfolio Holder opened the tenders on the 2 October 2006. The results 
were recorded as follows:  
 
 Contractor Tender Sum 

£ 
1 Homesales Construction Ltd 101,088.00 
2 Essex Heating and Electrical Services Ltd 112,874.00 
3 Gracelands (Complete Maintenance Services) Ltd 113,236.00 
4 T A Horn Ltd 124,750.00 
5 R W Edwards Ltd 131,390.00 

 
4. A tender analysis has been undertaken which shows all the tenders have been 
completed in full, although the tenders submitted by Homesales Construction Ltd and R W 
Edwards contained minor arithmetically errors. The lowest tender was submitted by 
Homesales Construction Ltd and contained an 8-pence error, which is not considered 
significant.  
 
5. The tender submitted by Homesales Construction Ltd, in the sum of £101,088, is a 
fully compliant bid. However, the tender is above the existing budget within the Capital 
Programme of £73,000, due to the scope of works for these blocks are such that the tanks 
are much larger than in previous contracts and the existing tanks that are to be removed 
contain asbestos. Therefore, in order to meet the shortfall, it is recommended that £28,000 

Agenda Item 11

Page 29



be made available from the £311,000 savings reported to the Cabinet at its meeting in 
September arising from the Wickfields stock transfer.  
 
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action: 
 
6. The existing communal cold-water storage tanks to various Council properties have 
been identified as in need of immediate replacement due to their age and condition.  
 
Other Options For Action: 
 
7. Not to undertake the works. However, this would result in further deterioration of the 
cold-water storage tank, which could lead to its eventual failure, and cause significant 
flooding and damage to the flats within the blocks. 
 
Consultation Undertaken:  
 
8. Leaseholders in line with the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2000 
legislation. 
 
Resource Implications:  
 
Budget Provision:  £73,000.00 from the communal water-tank renewals in the Capital 
Programme and £28,000 made available from the £311,000 savings reported to the Cabinet 
at its meeting in September from the Wickfields stock transfer.  
Personnel: Nil. 
Land: Nil. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP Ref: Nil. 
Relevant statutory powers: Decent Homes Standards. 
 
Background papers: Tenders analysis communal water-tank programme 2006-07. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: Nil. 
Key Decision Reference (if required): N/A. 

Page 30



Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:  C/073/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:  13 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:       Housing.  
 
Subject:  Springfields Improvement Scheme – Repurchase of Leasehold Flat. 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Paul Pledger   (01992 – 56 4248). 
 
Committee Secretary:    Gary Woodhall  (01992 – 56 4470). 
 
Recommendations:   
 

(1) That, in order to facilitate the Springfields Improvement Scheme, a 
further leasehold flat at 36 Springfields, Waltham Abbey be repurchased; and 

 
(2) That, in order to fund the repurchase, a further £88,000 be made 
available from the £310,000 savings reported to the Cabinet at its meeting in 
September from the Wickfields stock transfer within the HRA Capital 
Programme. 
 

Report: 
 
1. At its meeting on 6 February 2006, the Cabinet agreed to repurchase the leasehold 
flats at Springfields, Waltham Abbey, subject to an independent valuation by the Valuation 
Office. This was because for certain improvements, it will be necessary to vary the leases to 
take account of any changes that may occur as a result of the improvements. This means 
obtaining consent from each leaseholder and any other interested party, such as their 
mortgage lender, which from past experience has proven to be particularly time consuming 
and requires a lot of negotiation.  
 
2. Following individual discussions with leaseholders, agreements were reached with 7 
out of the 9 leaseholders - at the time of the Cabinet meeting on 4 September 2006 - to be 
bought back by the Council at a cost of £596,000. The original budget for repurchasing was 
increased by the Cabinet to facilitate this number of repurchases. 
 
3. Since then, a further leaseholder at 36 Springfields has come forward and expressed 
an interest in the Council buying back his leasehold property. This means 8 out of the 9 
leaseholders have now expressed an interest in selling their property back to the Council with 
the remaining leaseholder quite willing to contribute towards his share of the cost of the 
works as determined by the lease. 
 
4. In order to fund the repurchase, it is recommended that a further £88,000 [subject to 
the valuation office confirming the value] be made available from the savings resulting from 
the Wickfields stock transfer, to supplement the £596,000 already in the budget. 
 
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action: 
 
5. By buying back these leases, it removes the risk of the leaseholders not agreeing to 
the range of works proposed for Springfields as the leaseholders are under no obligation to 
agree a variation to the lease. Other advantages include: 

 
• The time it would take to buy back the properties would be far less than if the Council 
had to negotiate over variations to the lease; and  

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 31



• The property could be let to people on the housing waiting list. 
 
Other Options For Action: 
 
6. Not to buy back this property. However, this could lead to delays to the improvement 
scheme as a result of negotiations with the leaseholder over a variation to the lease. 
 
Consultation Undertaken:  
 
7. One to one consultation with the leaseholder. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget Provision:  £88,000 [Subject to confirmation from the Valuation Office] from the 
£310,000 savings reported to the Cabinet at its meeting on 4 September 2006 from the 
Wickfields stock transfer.  
Personnel: Nil. 
Land: Nil. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP Ref: Nil. 
Relevant Statutory Powers: None. 
 
Background Papers: None. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None. 
Key Decision Reference (if required): N/A. 
 

Page 32



Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:  C/074/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:  13 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:   Housing.  
 
Subject:   Provision of Social Housing Grant to Provide Affordable Housing - The 

Quarter, Chipping Ongar. 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Alan Hall   (01992 – 56 4004). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:   Gary Woodhall  (01992 – 56 4470). 
 
Recommendations: 
 

(1) That Social Housing Grant (SHG) of £710,000 be provided to London & 
Quadrant (L&Q) Housing Trust, funded from the unallocated budget for SHG 
within the Housing Capital Programme, to enable the rents of the 13 X 2 
bedroom flats and 5 X 4 bedroom houses at The Quadrant, Chipping Ongar to 
be converted from market rents to affordable rents; and  
 
(2) That further SHG totaling £290,000 be provided to L&Q Housing Trust 
when additional provision for SHG is made available within the Housing Capital 
Programme in the future, in order to convert the rents of the remaining 6 X 3 
bedroom houses from market rents to affordable rents 

 
Background: 
 
1.    At the meeting of the Cabinet on 10 April 2006, following a recommendation of the 
Housing Scrutiny Panel to increase the amount of affordable housing within the District, it 
was agreed that an additional one-off budget provision of £1million should be made within the 
Council's Capital Programme for 2006/7.  It was agreed that £500,000 should be funded as 
additional expenditure to the existing Capital Programme and a further £500,000 funded by 
reducing the budget(s) of one or more existing projects within the Capital Programme.  
However, at the Cabinet meeting held on 9 October 2006, this £1million was reduced by 
£500,000, since no funding had been secured from other budgets to finance this expenditure. 
 
2.   In addition to the remaining £500,000 budget, a further £210,000 is currently available 
within the Housing Capital Programme to fund social housing grant(s) (SHGs).  This funding 
has been secured through a variety of Section 106 Planning Agreements, whereby 
developers have been required to provide the Council with a payment (usually in lieu of 
providing affordable housing on a site), to be used to provide SHG to housing associations to 
provide affordable housing elsewhere within the District. 
 
3.   This total £710,000 has not yet been allocated.  The reason for this is that the most 
prudent use of this funding is for it to be used to provide SHG for an affordable housing 
development which, for some reason, does not receive funding from the Housing 
Corporation; clearly it would be better for the District to attract as much SHG funding from the 
Housing Corporation as possible, rather than use its own resources.   
 
4.   It was also agreed by the Cabinet in April 2006 that, prior to the annual review of the 
Capital Programme, a formal annual review should be undertaken by the Cabinet to agree 
whether further budget provision should be included within the Capital Programme to fund 
social housing grants and, if so, how much should be included and when. 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 33



The Quarter, Chipping Ongar:  
 
5.   Earlier in the year, the Housing Corporation confirmed SHG funding for most of the 
affordable housing developments that were on stream within the District at that time.  
However, one of the schemes that has not received Housing Corporation funding is the 
proposed affordable housing scheme at The Quarter, Chipping Ongar (on the site of Shelley 
House, the former Highway’s Depot).  This is a scheme for which the Council negotiated the 
provision of 30% affordable housing through a Section 106 Agreement and has been working 
in partnership with London & Quadrant Housing Trust (L&Q) to deliver.  The proposed 
affordable housing comprises 24 properties, as follows: 
 
• 13 X 2 bedroom flats; 
• 6 X 3 bedroom houses; and 
• 5 X 4 bedroom houses. 
 
6.   As part of the Section 106 Agreement, in order to make the best use of the 
accommodation, it was agreed that, once the properties had been built, L&Q could let the 
properties to applicants on the Council’s Housing Register at market rents, until such time as 
funding could be provided by the Housing Corporation to convert the rents to affordable 
levels.  This was explained to the Council’s applicants, who moved-in on this basis between 
December 2005 and February 2006.  The market rents range from £157.50 to £196.73 per 
week, compared to affordable rents which, for this development, would range from £80.24 to 
£115.23 per week. 
 
7.   However, L&Q’s bid for SHG funding from the Housing Corporation was not 
successful.  This was because the Housing Corporation’s Eastern Region changed its 
funding criteria after the closing date for bids, which had a significant effect on this scheme.  
The Eastern Region said that it would now only agree to fund schemes that are classified as 
“Very Good” under its Eco-Homes Standard.  Prior to this, the required level was “Good”, 
which was the standard adopted for the development at The Quarter.  Unlike bids for most 
affordable housings schemes, which are not built in advance of funding being allocated, the 
development had already been built.  It is therefore not possible to meet the “Very Good” 
level.  Consequently, not only was the bid unsuccessful, it will not be funded by the Housing 
Corporation in the future. 
 
8.   As a result, the tenants will continue to pay market rents, and the proposed affordable 
housing scheme - which was always the intended and negotiated tenure - will be lost to the 
District, unless SHG funding can be provided from another source.  One of the difficulties 
with this is that, although the majority of tenants are in receipt of full housing benefit, 5 
tenants (20%) are not, because they work.  These tenants are finding it increasingly difficult 
to sustain their tenancies, especially because they believed the rents would be converted to 
affordable levels in the near future.  Moreover, the remaining tenants have found themselves 
in a “poverty trap”, with no incentive to find work, even at low incomes.  It is also likely that 
future nominees from the Council’s Housing Register will only be those in receipt of housing 
benefit, since employed applicants on low incomes will be unable to afford the rents. 
   
Proposed Use Of Unallocated Social Housing Grant: 
 
9.   For the reasons given above, a request for grant funding from the Council has been 
received from L&Q, and it is suggested that this new development is just the type of scheme 
for which the Council should utilise its unallocated SHG.  The Total Scheme Cost for the 24 
affordable properties is £3.3m, which would ordinarily require SHG of £1.83m (with the 
remaining costs funded by a loan).  However, following discussions between the Head of 
Housing Services and L&Q, in order to convert the market rents to affordable rents in 
perpetuity, L&Q has offered to fund £827,000 of the costs from its own reserves, if the 
Council provided the remaining £1million SHG. 
 
10.   Since £500,000 has been withdrawn from the Capital Programme, there is no longer 
£1million unallocated SHG available.  However, the available £710,000 within the Housing 

Page 34



Capital Programme that is unallocated could convert the market rents of the 13 X 2 bedroom 
flats and the 5 X 4 bedroom houses to affordable rents.  The rents of the remaining 6 X 3 
bedroom houses could then be converted to affordable levels when either the Council makes 
additional provision within the Capital Programme or when an additional £290,000 is received 
from developers in the future, in lieu of the provision of affordable housing on other sites – 
which is expected.  
 
11.   The agreement with L&Q would include a provision that part of the SHG must be 
repaid to the Council, pro rata, should any of the tenants exercise their Right to Acquire their 
property (which is similar to the Right to Buy for Council tenants, but less beneficial). 
  
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action: 
 
12.   The provision of SHG for this development would be a prudent use of the Council’s 
unallocated funding and, in due course, would enable all of the market rents for the 
properties to be converted to affordable rents in perpetuity.      
 
Other Options For Action: 
 
13.  In addition to the recommended option, the Council could: 
 
(a)   decide not to provide any SHG - which would result in the potential for affordable 
housing being lost; the Council would also need to decide for which alternative types of 
schemes the budget provision for social housing grants should be used; or  
 
(b)  allocate less SHG, which would result in less rents being converted, and some 
properties continuing at market levels.  This would not only result in less affordable housing, 
it would also be inequitable for those Council nominees at the developments whose rents 
continue at market levels.  
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
14.   None. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget provision: £710,000 unallocated SHG within the Housing Capital Programme, with 
a further £290,000 to be funded when additional budget provision is made. 
Personnel: Nil. 
Land: Nil. 
 
Council Plan/BVPP reference:  Meeting Housing Need. 
Relevant statutory powers: Housing Act 1985. 
 
Background papers: Housing Policy File H619. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: Nil. 
Key Decision Reference (if required): N/A. 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



  

Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report Reference:  C/075/2006-07. 
Date of Meeting:  13 November 2006. 
 
 
Portfolio:   Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services. 
 
Subject:  Consultation Plan 2006/07.  
 
Officer contact for further information:  Steve Tautz   (01992 56 4180). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:    Gary Woodhall  (01992 56 4470). 
 
Recommendation: 

 
That the Consultation Plan for 2006/07, setting out those issues on which public 
consultation is planned to be undertaken during the remainder of 2006/07, and 
detailing those public consultation exercises completed during 2005/06, be 
noted. 

 
Report: 
 
1. During the latter part of 2005, the Audit Commission undertook a User Focus 
assessment across Essex, looking at how effectively councils engaged with local 
communities, the results of which have previously been reported to the Finance and 
Performance Management Scrutiny Panel. Although the assessment confirmed that the 
Council’s strengths in relation to public engagement outweighed its weaknesses, the 
Commission identified a number of possible areas for improvement in relation to the 
Authority’s approach to public consultation, particularly in respect of ensuring engagement 
with minority communities and other hard to reach groups. 
 
2. The Council’s existing Consultation Strategy was originally published in 1999 in 
response to the introduction of Best Value legislation. As a result of the User Focus 
assessment, the need to develop robust consultation proposals in relation to the new Council 
Plan for 2006-2010, and a likely future Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) 
focus, a new Public Consultation and Engagement Strategy was adopted in April 2006, 
setting out how the council will plan and undertake future consultation exercises. All 
consultation and engagement exercises undertaken by and on behalf of the Council are now 
required to comply with the provisions of the Public Consultation and Engagement Strategy. 
A revised consultation toolkit is also currently being produced in order to standardise 
consultation approaches and methodologies wherever possible, and this document will be 
issued to Heads of Service and relevant staff in due course. 
 
3. As part of the new Public Consultation and Engagement Strategy, the Cabinet has 
previously requested that a Consultation Plan be developed as part of the annual business 
planning process from 2006/07 onwards, in order to focus consultation and engagement on 
priorities and operational issues to be faced in the coming year. The Consultation Plan will 
also incorporate the results of consultation exercises undertaken during the preceding twelve 
months, through a Consultation Register that will enable members to scrutinise consultation 
results and processes. The Consultation Register has previously been produced for 
consideration by Overview and Scrutiny, and will therefore now form part of the development 
of the annual Consultation Plan, which will be submitted to both the Cabinet and the Finance 
and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel on an annual basis. This information will also 
be summarised within the annual Best Value Performance Plan. 

 
Agenda Item 14

Page 37



  

 
4. The Consultation Plan for 2006/07 is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. In future 
this will be reported to members at the commencement of each financial year, and will set out 
the issues on which individual services will be consulting or engaging residents or customers 
during the year, the overall objective for each consultation exercise, and how each exercise 
will be undertaken. In establishing this approach, it is recognised that the need for some 
consultation exercises will arise subsequent to the development of the Consultation Plan 
each year, as a result of unforeseen circumstances or priority issues. In addition, it should be 
noted that regular on-going satisfaction surveys such as housing report cards, or consultation 
carried out in relation to planning applications, will not be included within the Consultation 
Plan. 
 
5. The Cabinet is requested to note the Consultation Plan for 2006/07, and the details of 
those public consultation exercises completed during 2005 (Appendix 2) and to date during 
2006 (Appendix 3). These documents are to be considered by the Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny at its meeting on 14 November 2006. 
 
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action: 
 
6. To address the findings of the Audit Commission’s User Focus assessment and to 
develop an overall corporate approach to public consultation and engagement that promotes 
inclusivity amongst minority groups and communities that may not always be fully engaged or 
represented.  
 
Other Options Considered And Rejected: 
 
7. None. The Council is expected to take action to address the results of the Audit 
Commission’s User Focus assessment. User Focus was an important element in the 
methodology for the second-round of CPA for upper-tier authorities and is expected to also 
feature significantly in the next round of second-tier assessments. 
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
8. The development of an annual Consultation Plan has previously been agreed by the 
Cabinet and the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel. 
 
Resource Implications:  
 
Budget: None. 
Personnel: None. 
Land: None. 
 
Council Plan/BVPP reference: Section 8 – ‘How we Measure Our Achievements’. 
Relevant statutory powers: None. 
 
Background papers: None. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None. 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None. 
 

Page 38



N
o

.
Su

bj
ec

t 
m

at
te

r o
r 

is
su

es
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
ab

ou
t

W
he

n 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 

pl
ac

e

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
Th

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ch

an
ne

ls
 a

nd
 m

et
ho

ds
 to

 
be

 u
se

d

1
C

rit
er

ia
 fo

r 
ve

hi
cu

la
r 

cr
os

so
ve

rs
 o

n 
ho

us
in

g 
la

nd

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6
To

 s
ee

k 
th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 te

na
nt

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

gr
ee

 
a 

po
lic

y 
on

 v
eh

ic
ul

ar
 c

ro
ss

ov
er

 
ap

pr
ov

al
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 

su
ch

 in
st

al
la

tio
ns

 d
o 

no
t h

av
e 

a 
de

tri
m

en
ta

l a
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 s

tre
et

 s
ce

ne

To
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t a

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 

th
e 

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n

2
H

ou
si

ng
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

at
a 

on
 h

ou
si

ng
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 to

 te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 a
nd

 g
iv

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r f
ee

db
ac

k 
an

d 
di

sc
us

si
on

A
 re

gu
la

r r
ep

or
t d

et
ai

lin
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 

re
la

te
d 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 is

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n

3
B

V
P

I T
en

an
t 

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
S

ur
ve

y 
(s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
tri

en
ni

al
 s

ur
ve

y)

A
ug

us
t t

o 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6.

R
es

ul
ts

 in
fo

rm
 B

V
P

Is
 o

n 
ov

er
al

l 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 la

nd
lo

rd
 a

nd
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
ra

tin
gs

 o
f s

pe
ci

fic
 

ho
us

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 e
.g

. r
ep

ai
rs

 a
nd

 
ho

us
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t.

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y.
 T

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 te
na

nt
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

 fr
om

 2
00

6.
 

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 2
00

6/
07

D
A

TE
(S

)

Th
e 

gr
ou

ps
/in

di
vi

du
al

s 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d
H

ow
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n

M
in

ut
es

 o
f m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f t
he

 T
en

an
ts

 a
nd

 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 F

ed
er

at
io

n 
ar

e 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 to
 

al
l m

em
be

rs

R
EF

FE
ED

B
A

C
K

 O
F 

R
ES

U
LT

S
SU

B
JE

C
T 

O
R

 IS
SU

E
O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
S

TA
R

G
ET

 G
R

O
U

PS
M

ET
H

O
D

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n

R
es

ul
ts

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

by
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r

S
am

pl
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 te

na
nt

s 
us

in
g 

'S
TA

TU
S

' m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 
(th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t's
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 fo
r t

he
 B

V
P

I 
qu

es
tio

ns
). 

R
es

ul
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

br
ea

kd
ow

n 
by

 e
th

ni
c 

m
in

or
ity

 
an

d 
ca

n 
be

 fu
rth

er
 b

ro
ke

n 
do

w
n 

by
 g

eo
gr

ap
hi

ca
l a

re
a/

ag
e 

et
c.

R
es

ul
ts

 to
 b

e 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 
th

e 
Te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
. 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
fo

r f
ee

db
ac

k,
 a

nd
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

in
 

th
e 

te
na

nt
s 

ne
w

sl
et

te
r a

nd
 th

e 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n 

in
 J

un
e 

20
07

. A
ny

 
co

m
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 H

ou
si

ng
 

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r f

or
 a

ct
io

n.

Page 39



4
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

S
tra

te
gy

 o
n 

E
ne

rg
y 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ill

 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 d
ur

in
g 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

6,
 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

A
ut

um
n.

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 
th

e 
dr

af
t E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
S

tra
te

gy
, a

nd
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
y 

ag
re

ed
 c

om
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

al
 

ve
rs

io
n.

Th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

dr
af

t, 
on

 w
hi

ch
 

co
ns

ul
te

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

vi
te

d 
to

 
co

m
m

en
t. 

5
H

ou
si

ng
 re

la
te

d 
fe

es
 a

nd
 

ch
ar

ge
s 

fo
r 

20
07

/0
8

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ill

 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 a
ro

un
d 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6,
 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ar

ou
nd

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
6,

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 
bu

dg
et

.

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 H

ou
si

ng
 re

la
te

d 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 fo

r 2
00

7/
08

 a
nd

 
to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
y 

ag
re

ed
 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

.

Th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill
 

at
te

nd
 a

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
E

pp
in

g 
Fo

re
st

 T
en

an
ts

 a
nd

 L
ea

se
ho

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

gi
ve

 a
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

is
su

es
. T

he
 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

on
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 fo

r 
20

07
08

 p
rio

r t
o 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
by

 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
, t

he
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

C
ab

in
et

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 

th
e 

C
ab

in
et

. 

6
P

la
nn

ed
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
r 

m
aj

or
 re

pa
irs

 in
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
or

 
bl

oc
ks

 

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 
on

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 
w

or
k.

 

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
fro

m
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ch
oi

ce
 i.

e.
 

co
lo

ur
s,

 fi
ni

sh
es

 e
tc

. T
he

 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 w
or

k,
 a

nd
 

th
e 

fit
tin

gs
 th

at
 a

re
 in

st
al

le
d 

in
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

. 

In
di

vi
du

al
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 a
 o

ne
-to

-o
ne

 
ba

si
s 

in
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

ho
m

e,
 w

he
re

 
op

tio
ns

 o
f c

ho
ic

e 
ca

n 
be

 e
xp

la
in

ed
 

an
d 

sh
ow

n 
to

 o
cc

up
ie

rs
. 

7
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

S
tra

te
gy

 o
n 

U
nd

er
 

O
cc

up
at

io
n

Ju
ly

 2
00

6.
 R

es
ul

ts
 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6,
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

by
 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 
th

e 
dr

af
t u

pd
at

ed
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

S
tra

te
gy

 o
n 

U
nd

er
 O

cc
up

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
y 

ag
re

ed
 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

.

Th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill
 

al
so

 a
tte

nd
 a

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
E

pp
in

g 
Fo

re
st

 T
en

an
ts

 a
nd

 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 F

ed
er

at
io

n 
to

 g
iv

e 
a 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

is
su

es
. 

Th
e 

 F
ed

er
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 th
e 

dr
af

t u
pd

at
ed

 S
tra

te
gy

 o
n 

U
nd

er
 O

cc
up

at
io

n 
be

fo
re

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

by
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

.  

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n.

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

al
 v

er
si

on
. T

he
 F

ed
er

at
io

n 
w

ill
  b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f a
ny

 a
gr

ee
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

at
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n.

 T
he

 v
ie

w
s 

of
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

. T
he

 F
ed

er
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

 m
ad

e 
by

 a
ny

 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 c
om

m
itt

ee
s.

In
di

vi
du

al
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

A
ny

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 w

or
k,

 a
nd

 th
e 

fit
tin

gs
 th

at
 a

re
 

in
st

al
le

d 
in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

. T
he

 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
on

e-
to

-o
ne

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
D

et
ai

le
d 

re
su

lts
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d.

 

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

al
 v

er
si

on
.  

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f a
ny

 a
gr

ee
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

at
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n.

 T
he

 v
ie

w
s 

of
 

th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 a
t t

he
 s

am
e 

tim
e 

as
 th

e 
P

an
el

 c
on

si
de

rs
 th

e 
dr

af
t u

pd
at

ed
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
tra

te
gy

 o
n 

U
nd

er
-

oc
cu

pa
tio

n.

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n,

 
E

ss
ex

 E
ne

rg
y 

A
dv

ic
e 

C
en

tre
, 

C
iti

ze
ns

 A
dv

ic
e 

B
ur

ea
us

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

.

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 fo

rm
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

. A
ll 

co
ns

ul
te

es
 w

ill
 re

ce
iv

e 
a 

co
py

 o
f t

he
 

S
tra

te
gy

.

Page 40



8
V

oi
ds

 re
-le

t 
st

an
da

rd
s

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6.

 
A

ny
 c

om
m

en
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
fro

m
 te

na
nt

s 
on

 th
e 

vo
id

s 
re

-le
t 

st
an

da
rd

s

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
E

pp
in

g 
Fo

re
st

 
Te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 th
e 

V
oi

ds
 

R
e-

le
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 s
ee

k 
th

ei
r 

vi
ew

s 
at

 a
 fu

tu
re

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n.

 

9
P

la
nn

ed
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t 

S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

s,
 

W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
.

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
, d

ep
en

di
ng

 
on

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 
w

or
k.

 

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
fro

m
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ch
oi

ce
 (i

.e
. 

co
lo

ur
s,

 fi
ni

sh
es

). 
To

 c
on

su
lt 

re
si

de
nt

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 c

on
tra

ct
or

 
se

le
ct

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 L
ea

se
ho

ld
er

s 
op

tin
g 

to
 s

el
l b

ac
k 

th
ei

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s,

 L
ea

se
ho

ld
er

s 
el

ec
tin

g 
to

 re
ta

in
 th

ei
r p

ro
pe

rty
 a

nd
 p

ay
 fo

r 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

C
on

su
lte

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

on
 a

 
on

e-
to

-o
ne

 b
as

is
 in

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ho

m
e,

 w
he

re
 o

pt
io

ns
 o

f c
ho

ic
e 

ca
n 

be
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 a
nd

 s
ho

w
n 

to
 

oc
cu

pi
er

s.
 

P
ub

lic
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

Fo
cu

s 
G

ro
up

 o
n 

m
at

te
rs

 o
f c

ho
ic

e.
 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

R
ou

nd
hi

lls
 R

es
id

en
ts

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
an

d/
or

 th
e 

Fo
cu

s 
G

ro
up

 o
n 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 p

an
el

 w
he

n 
in

te
rv

ie
w

in
g 

pr
os

pe
ct

iv
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

at
 th

e 
te

nd
er

 s
ta

ge
. 

O
ne

-to
-o

ne
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 o
pt

in
g 

to
 s

el
l b

ac
k 

th
ei

r p
ro

pe
rti

es
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

6.
 T

he
 

ou
tc

om
e 

w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l l
ea

se
s 

as
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ab

in
et

.

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 w

or
k,

 a
nd

 th
e 

fit
tin

gs
 th

at
 a

re
 

in
st

al
le

d 
in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

. T
he

 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
on

e-
to

-o
ne

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
D

et
ai

le
d 

re
su

lts
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d.

 

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n

A
s 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 a

t a
 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
Te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n,
 th

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

at
 

th
at

 ti
m

e

Page 41



10
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
tra

te
gy

 2
00

6-
20

09

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ill

 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 d
ur

in
g 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

6,
 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

A
ut

um
n

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 
th

e 
dr

af
t H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
, a

nd
 to

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
an

y 
ag

re
ed

 c
om

m
en

ts
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

al
 v

er
si

on

C
on

su
lte

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
ra

ft 
of

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
S

tra
te

gy
 , 

on
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
vi

te
d 

to
 c

om
m

en
t u

po
n.

11
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

of
f-s

tre
et

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
at

 v
ar

io
us

 s
ite

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t.

O
n-

go
in

g.
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ill

 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 o
nc

e 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
st

ud
y 

fo
r e

ac
h 

si
te

 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 in
 la

te
 

A
ut

um
n 

ea
ch

 
ye

ar
. 

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
fro

m
 re

si
de

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 o

ff-
st

re
et

 
pa

rk
in

g.
 T

he
 re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ex
er

ci
se

 w
ill

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

if 
th

er
e 

is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 
lo

ca
l s

up
po

rt 
fo

r w
or

k 
to

 g
o 

ah
ea

d.

C
on

su
lte

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
le

tte
r a

nd
 p

la
n 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 w

ith
 a

 p
re

-p
ai

d 
re

pl
y 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

, o
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 w

ill
 

be
 in

vi
te

d 
to

 c
om

m
en

t u
po

n.
 

D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f r
et

ur
ns

, 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 d
o 

on
e-

to
-

on
e 

ho
m

e 
vi

si
t c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
to

 
ga

ug
e 

re
si

de
nt

’s
 v

ie
w

s.

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

S
oc

ia
l L

an
dl

or
ds

 
(R

S
L’

s)
 w

ith
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

 in
 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

, L
oc

al
 to

w
n 

an
d 

pa
ris

h 
co

un
ci

ls
, E

pp
in

g 
Fo

re
st

 
Te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n,
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
op

er
at

in
g 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t, 
lo

ca
l e

st
at

e 
ag

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s,
 E

pp
in

g 
Fo

re
st

 
P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t, 
N

or
th

 
E

ss
ex

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 N

H
S

 T
ru

st
, E

ss
ex

 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
(A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s)
, E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

(C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s)
, E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
Te

am
, T

he
 th

re
e 

C
iti

ze
ns

 
A

dv
ic

e 
B

ur
ea

ux
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

, V
ol

un
ta

ry
 A

ct
io

n 
E

pp
in

g 
Fo

re
st

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
. A

ll 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 w
ill

 re
ce

iv
e 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

l 
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 th
e 

S
tra

te
gy

.

Lo
ca

l W
ar

d 
M

em
be

rs
, l

oc
al

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 
lo

ca
tio

n 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
w

or
ks

, 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 re
si

de
nt

/c
om

m
un

ity
 

/te
na

nt
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns

R
es

ul
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 fu

tu
re

 P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r r
ep

or
ts

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
fu

tu
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 o
f w

or
k.

Page 42



12
Fu

tu
re

 
re

fu
se

/re
cy

cl
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

t 
R

om
el

an
ds

, 
W

al
th

am
 A

bb
ey

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ill

 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 o
n 

7t
h 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6.
  

R
es

ul
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
w

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 1
9t

h 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6

To
 o

bt
ai

n 
a 

vi
ew

 o
n 

pr
op

os
al

 a
nd

 
ex

tra
ct

 o
th

er
 id

ea
s 

fro
m

 re
si

de
nt

s.
Le

tte
r a

nd
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

.

13
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
ou

si
ng

 
R

ev
en

ue
 

A
cc

ou
nt

 (H
R

A
) 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

20
07

Th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7,
 w

ith
 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 M
ar

ch
 

20
07

.

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 
th

e 
dr

af
t H

R
A

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n;

 to
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
y 

ag
re

ed
 c

om
m

en
ts

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

; a
nd

 to
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 th
e 

Te
na

nt
s 

&
 L

ea
se

ho
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

.

Th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 th
e 

D
ra

ft 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
, p

rio
r t

o 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

by
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

.  
Th

ey
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 

gi
ve

n 
a 

P
la

in
 E

ng
lis

h 
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 

th
e 

H
R

A
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n,
 a

nd
 th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ill

 
at

te
nd

 a
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
gi

ve
 a

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
is

su
es

.

14
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ep
ai

rs
 

Te
na

nt
 

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
S

ur
ve

y

O
ng

oi
ng

 fo
r a

ll 
re

pa
ir 

w
or

ks
.

To
 m

on
ito

r t
en

an
ts

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
to

 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 re
pa

irs
 s

er
vi

ce
S

ur
ve

y 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 re
pa

irs
 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t.

15
E

pp
in

g 
Fo

re
st

 
C

ar
el

in
e

U
nk

no
w

n 
at

 th
is

 
st

ag
e

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 C

ar
el

in
e 

ce
nt

re
U

nk
no

w
n 

at
 th

is
 s

ta
ge

16
U

pg
ra

di
ng

 d
oo

r 
en

try
 s

ys
te

m
s 

at
 

sh
el

te
re

d 
ho

us
in

g 
sc

he
m

es

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ill

 
co

m
m

en
ce

 
ar

ou
nd

 A
ug

us
t 

20
06

 w
ith

 re
su

lts
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ar

ou
nd

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
ns

ta
lls

 
sy

st
em

s 
th

at
 a

re
 ri

gh
t f

or
 th

e 
cl

ie
nt

 g
ro

up

H
ou

si
ng

 o
ffi

ce
r a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t 

S
he

lte
re

d 
Fo

ru
m

, T
en

an
ts

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

t i
nd

iv
id

ua
l s

ch
em

es

17
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

tra
te

gy
 o

n 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

B
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

.
To

 o
bt

ai
n 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 a

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

hi
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
ra

te
gy

.
A

 d
ra

ft 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 

th
e 

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

fo
r d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
at

 o
ne

 o
f 

its
 re

gu
la

r m
ee

tin
gs

.

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
R

es
ul

ts
 w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

hi
ch

 d
oo

r e
nt

ry
 

sy
st

em
 is

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 fo

r s
he

lte
re

d 
sc

he
m

es

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n.

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 a
ris

in
g 

fro
m

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
Te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
fin

al
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

st
ra

te
gy

. M
in

ut
es

 o
f F

ed
er

at
io

n 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

ar
e 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 to

 a
ll 

m
em

be
rs

.

A
ll 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 re
pa

irs
 w

or
ks

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t n

 th
ei

r p
ro

pe
rty

.

R
es

ul
ts

 u
se

d 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

fo
r 

be
tte

r c
us

to
m

er
 c

ar
e.

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

e 
H

ol
de

rs
 F

ed
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
S

he
lte

re
d 

Fo
ru

m

R
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
fu

tu
re

 o
f C

ar
el

in
e-

 
in

fo
rm

 c
on

su
lte

es
 o

f o
ut

co
m

e

A
ll 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 a
t 

R
om

el
an

ds
 in

 W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
 

W
ill

 fo
rm

 b
as

is
 o

f d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

n 
fu

tu
re

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
.  

In
 

du
e 

co
ur

se
 c

on
su

lte
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
vi

se
d 

of
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 w

rit
in

g.

Th
e 

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

al
 v

er
si

on
.  

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f a
ny

 a
gr

ee
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

at
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n.

 T
he

 v
ie

w
s 

of
 

th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 a
t t

he
 s

am
e 

tim
e 

as
 th

e 
P

an
el

 c
on

si
de

rs
 th

e 
dr

af
t H

R
A

 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n.
 

Page 43



18
H

ou
si

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
S

ch
em

e

It 
is

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 

co
m

m
en

ce
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
in

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

07
 w

ith
 

vi
ew

 to
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
th

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
at

 
m

on
th

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 th

ey
 re

pr
es

en
t a

gr
ee

 
in

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ny
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
s,

 to
 in

vi
te

 c
om

m
en

ts
 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 a

nd
 fu

rth
er

 p
ro

po
sa

l 
fo

r c
ha

ng
e

B
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

do
cu

m
en

t i
n 

dr
af

t f
or

m
, g

iv
in

g 
in

te
re

st
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

tim
e 

to
 c

om
m

en
t 

on
 a

ny
 a

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 d

ra
ft 

do
cu

m
en

t. 

19
C

ho
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 
Le

tti
ng

s 
 

A
ut

um
n 

20
06

 
A

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t t

ha
t 

C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 S

ch
em

es
 

be
 in

tro
du

ce
d 

by
 2

01
0 

gi
vi

ng
 

ho
us

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 c

ho
ic

e,
 

op
tio

ns
, m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

a 
m

or
e 

tra
ns

pa
re

nt
 p

ro
ce

ss
. T

o 
se

ek
 th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 te

na
nt

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
on

 th
e 

S
ch

em
e.

  T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r.

M
ee

tin
gs

/P
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
/C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 S
ch

em
e 

de
ta

ils
.

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

S
oc

ia
l L

an
dl

or
ds

, 
ot

he
r s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 a

nd
 

re
le

va
nt

 o
lu

nt
ar

y 
ag

en
ci

es

U
nk

no
w

n 
at

 th
is

 s
ta

ge

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n,

 
in

te
re

st
ed

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 

S
he

lte
re

d 
Fo

ru
m

, L
ea

se
ho

ld
er

s 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n,
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
.

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

S
ch

em
e.

Page 44



20
P

la
nn

ed
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
r 

m
aj

or
 re

pa
irs

 in
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
or

 
bl

oc
ks

 

Th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
, d

ep
en

di
ng

 
on

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 
w

or
k.

 T
he

 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 w
or

k,
 

an
d 

th
e 

fit
tin

gs
 

th
at

 a
re

 in
st

al
le

d 
in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

pr
op

er
tie

s.
 

D
et

ai
le

d 
re

su
lts

 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d.

 

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
fro

m
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ch
oi

ce
 i.

e.
 

co
lo

ur
s,

 fi
ni

sh
es

 e
tc

. 

Th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 a
 o

ne
-to

-
on

e 
ba

si
s 

in
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

ho
m

e,
 

w
he

re
 o

pt
io

ns
 o

f c
ho

ic
e 

ca
n 

be
 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
sh

ow
n 

to
 o

cc
up

ie
rs

. 

21
D

iv
er

si
ty

 a
nd

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

.

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

6
To

 s
ee

k 
th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 te

na
nt

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l 
ag

en
ci

es
 o

n 
th

e 
D

iv
er

si
ty

 a
nd

 
In

cl
us

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

.  
Th

is
 in

cl
ud

es
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r.

To
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

te
e 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 in
 a

dv
an

ce

22
H

ar
as

sm
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 S

tra
te

gy
 Ju

ne
 2

00
6

To
 s

ee
k 

th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 te
na

nt
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l 

ag
en

ci
es

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ar

as
sm

en
t  

S
tra

te
gy

, w
hi

ch
 s

et
s 

ou
t H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s'
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 h
ar

as
sm

en
t o

f 
te

na
nt

s.
  T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r

To
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

te
e 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 in
 a

dv
an

ce

In
di

vi
du

al
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

A
ny

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 w

or
k,

 a
nd

 th
e 

fit
tin

gs
 th

at
 a

re
 

in
st

al
le

d 
in

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

. T
he

 
co

ns
ul

te
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
on

e-
to

-o
ne

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n,

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, H

ou
si

ng
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

.

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 s

tra
te

gy

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n,

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, H
ou

si
ng

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

.

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 s

tra
te

gy

Page 45



23
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

S
tra

te
gy

 R
en

t 
A

rr
ea

rs
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

7
To

 s
ee

k 
th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 te

na
nt

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l 
ag

en
ci

es
 o

n 
th

e 
R

en
t A

rr
ea

rs
 

S
tra

te
gy

, w
hi

ch
 e

xp
la

in
s 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 re
nt

 a
rr

ea
rs

 re
co

ve
ry

. 
Th

is
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f H
ou

si
ng

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r.

To
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

te
e 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 in
 a

dv
an

ce
.

24
Lo

ca
l S

up
po

rti
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

To
 s

ee
k 

th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 te
na

nt
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l 

ag
en

ci
es

 o
n 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l S
up

po
rti

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e 

S
tra

te
gy

, w
hi

ch
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

ho
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 re
la

te
d 

su
pp

or
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
nd

 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  
Th

is
 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 m

em
be

rs
 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
 a

nd
 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r.

To
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

te
e 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
ci

rc
ul

at
ed

 in
 a

dv
an

ce
.

25
A

 p
ol

ic
y 

fo
r 

de
m

ot
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
to

le
ra

te
d 

tre
sp

as
se

rs
 o

n 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

R
eg

is
te

r w
ho

 a
re

 
se

ek
in

g 
a 

tra
ns

fe
r.

A
ut

um
n 

20
06

To
 s

ee
k 

th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 te
na

nt
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
, t

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r.

To
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t a

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 

th
e 

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 in

 
ad

va
nc

e.

26
P

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 o

n 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

C
on

tro
l 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

A
ut

um
n 

to
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6
To

 c
on

su
lt 

lo
ca

l a
ge

nt
s/

ar
ch

ite
ct

s 
et

c 
on

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
on

tro
l i

ss
ue

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

nd
 m

ak
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

U
si

ng
 “D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tro

l 
Fo

ru
m

” m
ee

tin
g.

 P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

vi
a 

em
ai

l, 
po

st
, w

eb
si

te
 e

tc
.

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n,

 S
up

po
rti

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
C

or
e 

S
tra

te
gy

 G
ro

up
, I

nc
lu

si
ve

 
Fo

ru
m

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
W

or
ks

ho
p,

 S
he

lte
re

d 
Fo

ru
m

, 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
, o

ne
 to

 
on

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
 w

ith
 a

ge
nc

y 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

.

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 s

tra
te

gy

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 T

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 F
ed

er
at

io
n.

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r

Lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
ag

en
ts

, 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s,

 d
es

ig
ne

rs
 a

nd
 

pl
an

ne
rs

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
su

lts
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 
as

se
ss

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
, w

he
re

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y,

 m
ak

e 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
 to

 
se

rv
ic

e 
le

ve
ls

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n,

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

.

A
gr

ee
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 s

tra
te

gy

Page 46



27
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t

Ju
ne

 to
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6

Th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t i

s 
a 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f t

he
 n

ew
 p

la
nn

in
g 

sy
st

em
. T

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

S
C

1 
(w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

te
m

pl
at

e 
fo

r a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
nn

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n)

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t

W
eb

si
te

, e
-m

ai
l, 

m
ai

l s
ho

ts

28
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 

A
pp

ra
is

al
s 

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
la

ns
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7
To

 s
ee

k 
vi

ew
s 

on
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t o

f 
th

e 
 M

at
ch

in
g 

G
re

en
, M

at
ch

in
g 

an
d 

M
at

ch
in

g 
Ty

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

as

P
ub

lic
 M

ee
tin

g/
D

is
cu

ss
io

ns
, 

W
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 e
-m

ai
l.

29
S

ta
ff 

A
tti

tu
de

 
S

ur
ve

y 
Th

is
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 

pl
ac

e 
du

rin
g 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
an

d 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
be

fo
re

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

07

To
 fi

nd
 o

ut
 th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 s

ta
ff 

on
 a

 
ra

ng
e 

of
 m

at
te

rs
 li

nk
in

g 
th

e 
IiP

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
n 

on
-li

ne
 s

ur
ve

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

 H
ar

d 
co

pi
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 s
ta

ff 
w

ho
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e 
IC

T 
ac

ce
ss

.

30
Fa

vo
ur

ite
 T

re
es

 
of

 E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 

D
is

tri
ct

 

E
nt

rie
s 

ca
n 

be
 

su
bm

itt
ed

 u
nt

il 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6

To
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 tr
ee

s 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

 
fin

di
ng

/n
om

in
at

in
g 

50
 tr

ee
s

Le
af

le
ts

, w
eb

si
te

, e
m

ai
l, 

m
ee

tin
gs

, 
C

ou
nt

ry
ca

re
 c

on
ta

ct
s

R
es

id
en

ts
, a

m
en

ity
 g

ro
up

s,
 

Tr
ee

 W
ar

de
ns

 e
tc

P
ur

po
se

 b
ui

lt 
w

eb
si

te
 to

 b
e 

cr
ea

te
d.

A
ll 

st
af

f e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
A

ll 
 s

ta
ff 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f t

he
 o

ut
co

m
es

 
od

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
, a

nd
 a

ny
 a

ct
io

n 
pr

op
os

ed
. 

A
ct

io
ns

 w
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 th

e 
is

su
es

 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 b
y 

st
af

f.

N
at

io
na

l b
od

ie
s,

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

un
de

rta
ke

rs
, a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

iti
es

, l
oc

al
 c

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 

gr
ou

ps
, a

nd
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ho
 

ha
ve

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
an

 
in

te
re

st
.

A
m

en
d 

th
e 

S
C

1 
fo

r f
or

m
al

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

 to
 

th
e 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
 (i

n 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
) –

 T
he

n 
fu

rth
er

 ro
un

d 
of

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n

P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
ils

, l
oc

al
 re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

am
en

ity
 g

ro
up

s
R

es
ul

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 re
fin

e 
an

d 
fin

al
is

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

pl
an

s

Page 47



31
Le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

 
C

us
to

m
er

 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

O
n-

go
in

g.
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 h

el
d 

at
 

ea
ch

 c
en

tre
 b

y 
U

se
r F

or
um

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
to

 
ga

ug
e 

cu
st

om
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
se

ek
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

fro
m

 u
se

rs
 

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
Le

is
ur

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
on

tra
ct

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 
Fo

ru
m

s 
al

lo
w

 u
se

fu
l f

ee
db

ac
k 

fro
m

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

on
 th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tra

ct
or

 
an

d 
as

si
st

 C
lie

nt
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 in

 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 w
ha

t i
ss

ue
s 

ar
e 

im
po

rta
nt

 to
 U

se
rs

.  
Th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 F
or

um
s 

ar
e 

at
te

nd
ed

 
by

 C
lie

nt
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
no

m
in

at
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il.

M
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 h
el

d 
at

 le
as

t f
ou

r 
tim

es
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 a
t t

he
 le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

s.
  T

he
 a

ge
nd

a 
is

 a
dv

er
tis

ed
 

an
d 

m
in

ut
es

 p
ub

lis
he

d.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Fo
ru

m
s 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 is
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

om
m

en
ts

 
C

ar
ds

, C
ha

rte
rm

ar
k 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

by
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
n 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
de

vi
ce

 c
al

le
d 

th
e 

O
pi

ni
on

 M
et

er
. 

32
Le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
C

ul
tu

ra
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
on

-U
se

r S
ur

ve
y 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

7 
w

ith
 re

su
lts

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
7.

 

To
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

cu
rr

en
t p

at
te

rn
s 

of
 

us
e,

 b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

ho
w

 to
 m

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
m

ar
ke

t t
he

 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
or

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

el
y 

re
-d

es
ig

n 
th

em
 to

 
m

ak
e 

th
em

 m
or

e 
at

tra
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
.  

S
ur

ve
y 

to
 b

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 

at
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 d

o 
no

t t
ak

e 
pa

rt 
or

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

Th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f i

nt
er

vi
ew

s 
to

 ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e 

on
 fa

ce
-to

-fa
ce

 b
as

is
 b

ut
 fo

r 
so

m
e 

ha
rd

 to
 re

ac
h 

gr
ou

ps
 

te
le

ph
on

e 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
an

d/
or

 fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 a
t a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 

be
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.  
Li

ai
so

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tn

er
 

ag
en

ci
es

 a
nd

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
to

 
ac

ce
ss

 h
ar

d 
to

 re
ac

h 
gr

ou
ps

 e
.g

. 
Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

, P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t, 

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

. 

33
B

V
P

I G
en

er
al

 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

(s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

tri
en

ni
al

 s
ur

ve
y)

Ju
ne

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

.
R

es
ul

ts
 in

fo
rm

 B
V

P
Is

 o
n 

ov
er

al
l 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 

co
un

ci
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l 

m
at

te
rs

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y.
 T

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t f
or

 B
V

P
I s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

fro
m

 2
00

6.
 

S
am

pl
e 

of
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t u
si

ng
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t's
 

st
an

da
rd

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fo

r t
he

 B
V

P
I 

qu
es

tio
ns

. R
es

ul
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

br
ea

kd
ow

n 
by

 e
th

ni
ci

ty
 a

nd
 c

an
 

be
 fu

rth
er

 b
ro

ke
n 

do
w

n 
by

 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
 a

re
a/

ag
e 

et
c.

R
es

ul
ts

 to
 b

e 
fo

rm
al

ly
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

in
 th

e 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n 

in
 J

un
e 

20
07

.

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 o
f c

lu
bs

 a
nd

 
ca

su
al

 u
se

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
le

is
ur

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

O
ut

co
m

es
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

w
ith

 a
gr

ee
d 

lis
t o

f 
A

ct
io

n 
P

oi
nt

s.
  P

ro
gr

es
s 

m
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

lie
nt

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
nd

 F
or

um
s.

 
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 w

ill
 b

e 
fe

d 
in

to
 th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 

C
on

tra
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

or
e 

M
ee

tin
g 

as
 

w
el

l a
s 

be
in

g 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

C
on

tra
ct

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

B
oa

rd
 C

ha
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

Le
is

ur
e 

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r.

A
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 th

e 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 m

ak
e 

up
 o

f t
he

 
di

st
ric

t, 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s 

w
ith

 1
,0

00
 re

si
de

nt
s.

  

R
es

ul
ts

 w
ill

 in
flu

en
ce

 L
ei

su
re

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

P
la

n 
an

d 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n.
  

R
es

ul
ts

 o
f t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l m
at

er
ia

ls
.

Page 48



34
B

V
P

I P
la

nn
in

g 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

(s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

tri
en

ni
al

 s
ur

ve
y)

Ju
ne

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

.
R

es
ul

ts
 in

fo
rm

 B
V

P
Is

 o
n 

ov
er

al
l 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 p
la

nn
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
P

os
ta

l s
ur

ve
y.

 T
hi

s 
is

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

or
 B

V
P

I s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

s 
fro

m
 2

00
6.

 

35
B

V
P

I B
en

ef
its

 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

(s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

tri
en

ni
al

 s
ur

ve
y)

Ju
ne

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

.
R

es
ul

ts
 in

fo
rm

 B
V

P
Is

 o
n 

ov
er

al
l 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 b
en

ef
its

 s
er

vi
ce

s
P

os
ta

l s
ur

ve
y.

 T
hi

s 
is

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

or
 B

V
P

I s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

s 
fro

m
 2

00
6.

 

36
D

om
es

tic
 re

fu
se

, 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

st
re

et
 c

le
an

si
ng

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6 
on

w
ar

ds
R

es
ul

ts
 w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 n
ew

 re
fu

se
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n,
 re

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

st
re

et
 c

le
an

si
ng

 c
on

tra
ct

 in
 

20
07

O
n-

lin
e 

su
rv

ey
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l's
 w

eb
si

te

S
am

pl
e 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
/C

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
B

en
ef

it 
cl

ai
m

an
ts

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t's
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 fo
r t

he
 B

V
P

I 
qu

es
tio

ns
. R

es
ul

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
br

ea
kd

ow
n 

by
 e

th
ni

ci
ty

R
es

ul
ts

 to
 b

e 
fo

rm
al

ly
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

in
 th

e 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n 

in
 J

un
e 

20
07

.

S
am

pl
e 

of
 u

se
rs

 o
f p

la
nn

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t's
 

st
an

da
rd

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fo

r t
he

 B
V

P
I 

qu
es

tio
ns

. R
es

ul
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

br
ea

kd
ow

n 
by

 e
th

ni
ci

ty

R
es

ul
ts

 to
 b

e 
fo

rm
al

ly
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

in
 th

e 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n 

in
 J

un
e 

20
07

.

A
ll 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t

R
es

ul
ts

 w
il 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 M
ed

ia
, 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
 

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO

M
ET

H
O

D

C
O

N
S

/0
1/

05
P

ay
ph

on
es

 in
 

S
he

lte
re

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
ch

em
es

Ja
n-

05
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

H
ou

si
ng

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
S

tra
te

gy
 T

ea
m

.

To
 fi

nd
 o

ut
 w

he
th

er
 re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 

sh
el

te
re

d 
sc

he
m

es
 w

er
e 

m
ak

in
g 

go
od

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 p

ay
ph

on
es

 in
 

or
de

r t
o 

ju
st

ify
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

em
.

G
en

er
al

ly
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 s
ho

w
ed

 lo
w

 
us

ag
e,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 

va
rie

d 
fro

m
 s

ch
em

e 
to

 s
ch

em
e.

 
R

es
id

en
ts

 w
er

e 
no

t u
si

ng
 th

e 
ph

on
es

 fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 b

ut
 s

om
e 

fe
lt 

th
is

 fa
ci

lit
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ta
in

ed
. 

S
he

lte
re

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 

Fo
ru

m
, H

ou
si

ng
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Te
am

.

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y 
us

in
g 

S
na

p 
su

rv
ey

 
so

ftw
ar

e

C
O

N
S

/0
2/

05
S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 
P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n

Ja
n-

05
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

H
ou

si
ng

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
S

tra
te

gy
 T

ea
m

To
 s

ee
k 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

vi
ew

s 
on

 a
 

pr
op

os
ed

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
fro

m
 re

si
de

nt
s 

liv
in

g 
on

 th
e 

S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

s 
E

st
at

e,
 W

al
th

am
 

A
bb

ey
, a

nd
 in

 th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

ar
ea

B
ud

ge
t s

et
 a

si
de

 fo
r m

aj
or

 w
or

ks
 

on
 th

e 
es

ta
te

, s
om

e 
es

se
nt

ia
l, 

ot
he

r w
or

ks
 o

pt
io

na
l. 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
w

as
 to

 s
ee

k 
vi

ew
s 

on
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r o

pt
io

na
l w

or
k.

S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

s 
pr

oj
ec

t 
te

am
P

os
ta

l s
ur

ve
y 

pr
od

uc
ed

 w
ith

 S
na

p 
su

rv
ey

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
an

d 
ha

nd
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 C

os
ts

 o
f 

pr
in

tin
g/

re
tu

rn
 

po
st

ag
e 

on
ly

C
O

N
S

/0
3/

05
G

ar
de

n 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

S
ch

em
e

Ja
n-

05
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ea
d 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(O

pe
ra

tio
ns

) 

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
ga

rd
en

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 s

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 p
eo

pl
e

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
is

 c
on

su
lte

d 
on

 
al

l p
ol

ic
y 

is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

(1
)

R
ep

or
t o

n 
pr

op
os

al
s 

di
sc

us
se

d 
at

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
g

C
O

N
S

/0
4/

05
E

st
at

e 
C

le
an

si
ng

 
(M

ob
ile

 C
le

an
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce

Ja
n-

05
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ea
d 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(O

pe
ra

tio
ns

)

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

  t
en

an
ts

, C
A

B
  

&
 T

en
an

ts
 &

 L
ea

se
ho

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 to

 
ex

te
nd

 th
e 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

sm
al

le
r f

la
t b

lo
ck

s

O
ut

co
m

e 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

sh
ow

ed
 

th
at

 te
na

nt
s 

liv
in

g 
in

 s
m

al
le

r 
bl

oc
ks

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n

(a
) P

os
ta

l s
ur

ve
y 

of
 

te
na

nt
s 

   
   

  (
b)

 
M

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 C

A
B

 
an

d 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n

C
O

N
S

/0
5/

05
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 –
 

Th
e 

S
pi

nn
ey

, 
Lo

ug
ht

on

A
pr

-0
5

A
re

a 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

an
ag

er
 

D
av

id
 B

ar
re

tt
A

re
a 

H
ou

si
ng

 
M

an
ag

er
 

To
 c

on
su

lt 
re

si
de

nt
s 

on
 a

 s
et

 o
f 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 c
om

pl
ex

 o
f 

el
de

rly
 p

er
so

ns
 fl

at
s.

A
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 p
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

de
m

ol
is

h 
dr

yi
ng

 a
re

as
. W

or
k 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t. 
S

om
e 

op
po

si
tio

n 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

to
 p

ro
po

sa
l t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
 n

ew
 

pa
th

w
ay

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 n

ot
 n

ow
 

pr
oc

ee
d.

 

In
te

rn
al

P
os

ta
l S

ur
ve

y

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

5

Page 51



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
 

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO

M
ET

H
O

D

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

5

C
O

N
S

/0
6/

05
B

ey
on

d 
S

ub
ur

bi
a

O
ct

 0
4 

to
 

M
ar

ch
 0

5
Le

is
ur

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s

H
ea

d 
of

 L
ei

su
re

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
 jo

in
t 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e

A
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

dy
 to

 in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r c

ul
tu

ra
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
in

 th
e 

ru
ra

l n
or

th
 o

f t
he

 E
FD

C

To
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 li
vi

ni
ng

 in
 th

e 
pa

ris
he

s 
in

 
th

is
 a

re
a

A
s 

ye
t n

ot
 re

po
rte

d,
 

bu
t p

la
n 

to
 re

po
rt 

to
 

m
em

be
rs

 v
ia

 O
/S

 
an

d 
ca

bi
ne

t a
nd

 
lo

ca
l p

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

ils
 v

ia
 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
su

m
m

ar
y

D
es

k 
re

se
ar

ch
, 

te
le

ph
on

e 
an

d 
fa

ce
 

to
 fa

ce
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s,
 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
. T

ot
al

 
co

st
 £

25
k.

 £
20

k 
fro

m
 E

R
R

F 
an

d 
£5

k 
fro

m
 E

FD
C

C
O

N
S

/0
7/

05
C

ha
ng

es
 to

 
H

ou
si

ng
 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

S
ch

em
e

S
ep

-0
5

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 
M

an
ag

er
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
nd

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

of
 lo

ca
l c

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 

R
S

Ls
 o

n 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

S
ch

em
e

Th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 is
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t 
an

nu
al

ly
, i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ct

 1
99

6 
an

d 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

C
ou

nc
ils

 C
ha

rte
r

C
ab

in
et

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y

C
O

N
S

/0
8/

05
In

tro
du

ct
or

y 
Te

na
nc

y 
S

ch
em

e
S

ep
-0

5
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ea
d 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(O

pe
ra

tio
ns

) 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ll 

ex
is

tin
g 

se
cu

re
 te

na
nt

s,
 C

A
B

  &
 T

en
an

ts
 

&
 L

ea
se

ho
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
on

 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 to

 in
tro

du
ce

 a
n 

In
tro

du
ct

or
y 

Te
na

nc
y 

S
ch

em
e 

fo
r 

al
l n

ew
 s

ec
ur

e 
te

na
nt

s

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

is
 a

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
In

tro
du

ct
or

y 
Te

na
nc

y 
S

ch
em

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

.  
Th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
w

ill
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 a
ll 

ne
w

 
se

cu
re

 te
na

nt
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

on
 

"p
ro

ba
tio

n"
 fo

r t
he

 fi
rs

t t
w

el
ve

 
m

on
th

s 
of

 th
ei

r t
en

an
cy

C
ab

in
et

(a
) M

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 

C
A

B
 a

nd
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

   
   

  (
b)

 
Th

ro
ug

h 
H

ou
si

ng
 

N
ew

s 
- a

ll 
te

na
nt

s

C
O

N
S

/0
9/

05
C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 
fo

rm
er

 S
ch

em
e 

M
an

ag
er

's
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

at
 

H
yd

e 
M

ea
d 

H
ou

se
, N

az
ei

ng
 

Ju
n-

05
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ea
d 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(P

ro
pe

rty
 a

nd
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
)

R
es

id
en

ts
 m

ee
tin

g 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 
fu

tu
re

 u
se

 o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 ro
om

 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
af

te
r t

he
 

co
nv

er
si

on
 o

f a
 3

 b
ed

ro
om

 fl
at

 a
t 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e

R
es

id
en

ts
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 
pr

op
os

al
s

H
ou

si
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r
R

es
id

en
ts

 M
ee

tin
g

C
O

N
S

/1
0/

05
R

ep
ai

rs
 T

en
an

t 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y

on
-g

oi
ng

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ep
ai

rs
 

M
an

ag
er

O
n-

go
in

g 
po

st
 re

pa
ir 

su
rv

ey
O

ng
oi

ng
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

Te
na

nt
 S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

ca
rd

 w
ith

 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
of

 
re

pa
ir

Page 52



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
 

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO

M
ET

H
O

D

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

5

C
O

N
S

/1
1/

05
P

la
y 

A
re

a 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
on

-g
oi

ng
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
re

a 
H

ou
si

ng
 

M
an

ag
er

s
Lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 p
la

y 
ar

ea
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 L
im

es
 F

ar
m

, 
C

hi
gw

el
l d

ur
in

g 
20

05
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

A
re

a 
H

ou
si

ng
 

M
an

ag
er

Le
tte

r e
xp

la
in

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

C
O

N
S

/1
2/

05
H

ou
si

ng
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 S
tra

te
gy

A
pr

-0
5

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 H
ea

d 
of

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(O
pe

ra
tio

ns
) 

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 th
e 

up
da

te
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 S
tra

te
gy

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
is

 c
on

su
lte

d 
on

 
al

l p
ol

ic
y 

is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

H
ou

si
ng

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

D
ra

ft 
S

tra
te

gy
 

di
sc

us
se

d 
at

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
g

C
O

N
S

/1
3/

05
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
es

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

S
tra

te
gy

A
pr

-0
5

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 H
ea

d 
of

 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(O
pe

ra
tio

ns
) 

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 th
e 

up
da

te
d 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

es
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

 S
tra

te
gy

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
is

 c
on

su
lte

d 
on

 
al

l p
ol

ic
y 

is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

H
ou

si
ng

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

D
ra

ft 
S

tra
te

gy
 

di
sc

us
se

d 
at

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
g

C
O

N
S

/1
4/

05
Te

na
nt

 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

 
S

tra
te

gy

Ju
l-0

5
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ea
d 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(P

ro
pe

rty
 &

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

)

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

Le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 th
e 

up
da

te
d 

Te
na

nt
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
tra

te
gy

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
is

 c
on

su
lte

d 
on

 
al

l p
ol

ic
y 

is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

le
as

eh
ol

de
rs

H
ou

si
ng

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

D
ra

ft 
S

tra
te

gy
 

di
sc

us
se

d 
at

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
g

C
O

N
S

/1
5/

05
Q

ua
rte

rly
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

on
ito

rin
g

on
-g

oi
ng

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
H

ea
d 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s
Te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

on
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

eg
im

e 

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
is

 c
on

su
lte

d 
on

 
ho

us
in

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 b
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 a
ll 

ho
us

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 q
ua

rte
rly

H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

P
I S

ch
ed

ul
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
at

 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

 
qu

ar
te

rly

C
O

N
S

/1
6/

05
S

to
rm

 C
an

op
ie

s 
– 

H
yd

e 
M

ea
d 

H
ou

se
Ju

l-0
5

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 H
ou

si
ng

 
M

an
ag

er
   

  O
ld

er
 

P
eo

pl
es

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Fo
r t

he
 te

na
nt

s 
to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
hi

ch
 

op
tio

n 
th

ey
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 fo
r t

he
 

st
or

m
 c

an
op

y.

C
ou

nc
il 

te
na

nt
s 

of
 s

he
lte

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

 w
ith

in
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
es

 
se

rv
ic

es
.

M
an

ag
er

 –
 O

ld
er

 
P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y

C
O

N
S

/1
7/

05
S

to
rm

 C
an

op
ie

s 
– 

Fr
an

k 
B

re
tto

n 
H

ou
se

Ju
l-0

5
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ou
si

ng
 

M
an

ag
er

   
  O

ld
er

 
P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Fo
r t

he
 te

na
nt

s 
to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
hi

ch
 

op
tio

n 
th

ey
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 fo
r t

he
 

st
or

m
 c

an
op

y.

C
ou

nc
il 

te
na

nt
s 

of
 s

he
lte

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

 w
ith

in
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
es

 
se

rv
ic

es
.

M
an

ag
er

 –
 O

ld
er

 
P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y

Page 53



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
 

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO

M
ET

H
O

D

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

5

C
O

N
S

/1
8/

05
S

to
rm

 C
an

op
ie

s 
– 

B
uc

kh
ur

st
 C

ou
rt

Ju
l-0

5
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ou
si

ng
 

M
an

ag
er

   
  O

ld
er

 
P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Fo
r t

he
 te

na
nt

s 
to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
hi

ch
 

op
tio

n 
th

ey
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 fo
r t

he
 

st
or

m
 c

an
op

y.

C
ou

nc
il 

te
na

nt
s 

of
 s

he
lte

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

 w
ith

in
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
es

 
se

rv
ic

es
.

M
an

ag
er

 –
 O

ld
er

 
P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y

C
O

N
S

/1
9/

05
S

to
rm

 C
an

op
ie

s 
– 

Ju
bi

le
e 

C
ou

rt
Ju

l-0
5

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 H
ou

si
ng

 
M

an
ag

er
   

  O
ld

er
 

P
eo

pl
es

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Fo
r t

he
 te

na
nt

s 
to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
hi

ch
 

op
tio

n 
th

ey
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 fo
r t

he
 

st
or

m
 c

an
op

y.

C
ou

nc
il 

te
na

nt
s 

of
 s

he
lte

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

 w
ith

in
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
es

 
se

rv
ic

es
.

M
an

ag
er

 –
 O

ld
er

 
P

eo
pl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y

C
O

N
S

/2
0/

05
0

5
W

ic
kf

ie
ld

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
S

ch
em

e

A
ug

-0
5

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
H

ea
d 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s
A

ll 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

on
 th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ch

em
e 

be
in

g 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
st

oc
k 

tra
ns

fe
r, 

an
d 

on
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

de
si

gn

93
%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 w
er

e 
in

 fa
vo

ur
 

of
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

tra
ns

fe
r. 

 A
 R

es
id

en
ts

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
G

ro
up

 o
f 6

 
in

te
re

st
ed

 re
si

de
nt

s 
w

as
 fo

rm
ed

 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

si
gn

 
is

su
es

.

C
ab

in
et

(a
) R

es
id

en
ts

 
M

ee
tin

g 
(b

) 
In

di
vi

du
al

 v
is

its
 to

 
ea

ch
 te

na
nt

's
 h

om
e 

(c
) R

es
id

en
t 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

G
ro

up
 

M
ee

tin
gs

C
O

N
S

/2
1/

05
C

ha
pe

l R
oa

d 
B

in
 

A
re

a
A

ug
-0

5
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

To
 lo

ok
 a

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 s

to
rin

g 
of

 
re

fu
se

 o
n 

si
te

. R
es

po
nd

en
ts

 o
f 

sh
el

te
re

d 
ho

us
in

g,
 w

ho
 u

se
 th

e 
ex

iti
ng

 fa
ci

lit
y

M
aj

or
ity

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 re
sp

on
di

ng
 

to
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

, a
gr

ee
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 p

ro
ce

ed
 

du
rin

g 
20

05
/0

6.

O
n 

G
en

er
al

 
H

ou
si

ng
 fi

le
B

y 
po

st
 £

10
?

C
O

N
S

/2
2/

05
Le

on
ar

d 
D

av
is

 
H

ou
se

 D
ay

 C
lu

b
S

ep
-0

5
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

H
ou

si
ng

 M
an

ag
er

 
fo

r O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s

To
 s

ee
k 

te
na

nt
s 

vi
ew

s 
on

 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 a

 n
ew

 d
ay

 c
lu

b 
at

 
Le

on
ar

d 
D

av
is

 H
ou

se

P
ro

vi
di

ng
 tr

an
sp

or
t c

an
 b

e 
ar

ra
ng

ed
, a

 n
ew

 d
ay

 c
lu

b 
w

ill
 b

e 
he

ld
 o

n 
a 

m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
 a

t 
Le

on
ar

d 
D

av
is

 H
ou

se
. 4

1 
ou

t o
f 

47
 te

na
nt

s 
ar

e 
in

 fa
vo

ur
 o

f n
ew

 
da

y 
cl

ub
 a

t t
he

 s
ch

em
e

H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ea
d 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

C
O

N
S

/2
3/

05
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 - 

E
FD

C
 S

ho
pp

in
g 

P
ar

ad
e,

 m
ar

ke
t 

S
qu

ar
e,

 W
al

th
am

 
A

bb
ey

Ja
n-

05
E

st
at

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
A

ct
in

g 
H

ea
d 

of
 

E
st

at
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

To
 s

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
pr

op
os

ed
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
E

FD
C

Lo
ca

l i
nt

er
es

t g
ro

up
s/

bo
di

es
, 

sh
op

 te
na

nt
s,

 re
si

de
nt

s 
ab

ov
e 

sh
op

s;
 W

ar
d 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s,

 E
FD

C
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 c
on

su
lte

d

A
ct

in
g 

H
ea

d 
of

 
E

st
at

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y

Page 54



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
 

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO

M
ET

H
O

D

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

5

C
O

N
S

/2
4/

05
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

A
lte

ra
tio

ns
 - 

R
ed

po
si

t

Ju
l-0

5
Fo

rw
ar

d 
P

la
nn

in
g

Fo
rw

ar
d 

P
la

nn
in

g
To

 c
on

su
lt 

on
 p

ro
po

se
d 

po
lic

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
as

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 la

w
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

vi
si

on
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 
ob

je
ct

io
ns

 re
ce

iv
ed

 to
 F

irs
t 

D
ep

os
t.

A
ll 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

to
 F

irs
t D

ep
os

it,
 

an
d 

al
l t

ho
se

 w
ho

 re
qu

es
te

d 
a 

co
py

 o
f t

he
 F

irs
t D

ep
os

it,
 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 k

ey
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s,

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 

C
ab

in
et

 2
4 

O
ct

 
20

05
P

ap
er

 a
nd

 o
nl

in
e 

£1
5k

.

C
O

N
S

/2
5/

05
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 U

se
r 

S
ur

ve
ys

Ju
l-0

5
Fo

rw
ar

d 
P

la
nn

in
g

Fo
rw

ar
d 

P
la

nn
in

g
To

 c
ol

le
ct

 d
at

a 
on

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 
us

er
s 

in
 k

ey
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

in
 

di
st

ric
t i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
m

ee
t s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 a
nn

ua
l 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

R
an

do
m

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 u

p 
to

 1
00

 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 u

se
rs

 in
 e

ac
h 

of
 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 H
ig

h 
R

oa
d,

 L
ou

gh
to

n 
B

ro
ad

w
ay

, W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
, 

C
hi

pp
in

g 
O

ng
ar

, E
pp

in
g 

an
d 

B
uc

kh
ur

st
 H

ill
. N

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

or
 n

on
 re

si
de

nt
s.

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r 

N
ov

 2
00

5
Fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
£2

00

C
O

N
S

/2
6/

05
P

rin
ce

sf
ie

ld
 R

oa
d,

 
U

ps
hi

re
 –

 F
ut

ur
e 

of
 P

la
yg

ro
un

d

Ju
n-

05
H

ou
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
re

a 
H

ou
si

ng
 

M
an

ag
er

 (N
or

th
)

To
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

;  
A

ge
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
th

at
 u

se
 it

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

by
 re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 li
ve

 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

Le
tte

r s
en

t t
o 

al
l r

es
id

en
ts

 li
vi

ng
 

in
 e

st
at

es
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 th

e 
pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

. O
nl

y 
10

%
 re

sp
on

se
 

ra
te

 –
 m

ix
ed

 v
ie

w
s 

ab
ou

t w
ha

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

do
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

pl
ay

gr
ou

nd

Le
is

ur
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
To

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

fu
tu

re
 

us
e 

of
 p

la
yg

ro
un

d.

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y 
to

 1
80

 
re

si
de

nt
s.

C
O

N
S

/2
7/

05
R

es
er

ve
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 
sp

ac
es

, P
as

fie
ld

, 
W

al
th

am
 A

bb
ey

N
ov

-0
5

H
ou

si
ng

 M
an

ag
er

, 
M

an
ag

em
en

t N
or

th
H

ou
si

ng
 M

an
ag

er
, 

M
an

ag
em

en
t N

or
th

To
 g

et
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
pr

op
os

al
s

8 
A

gr
ee

 w
ith

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
, 4

 o
bj

ec
t, 

1 
no

 c
om

m
en

t. 
To

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

fu
tu

re
 p

ol
ic

y

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r 

R
ep

or
t 2

3.
1.

06
R

es
id

en
ts

 o
f 1

1 
ho

us
es

. H
om

e 
vi

si
ts

C
O

N
S

/2
8/

05
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ep
ai

rs
 

Te
na

nt
s 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y

La
te

 
20

05
/E

ar
l

y 
20

06

H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 R
ig

ht
s 

to
 

R
ep

ai
rs

 L
eg

is
la

tio
n

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ep

ai
rs

 
S

ec
tio

n
To

 m
on

ito
r c

us
to

m
er

s 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
R

es
po

ns
iv

e 
R

ep
ai

rs
 S

er
vi

ce

A
ll 

us
er

s 
of

 th
e 

R
es

po
ns

iv
e 

R
ep

ai
rs

 S
er

vi
ce

R
es

ul
ts

 re
po

rte
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

m
on

ito
rin

g.
 H

ea
d 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 re
pa

irs
 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t

Page 55



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
 

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO

M
ET

H
O

D

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

5

C
O

N
S

/2
9/

05
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ep
ai

rs
 

Te
na

nt
s 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y

O
ng

oi
ng

H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 R
ig

ht
s 

to
 

R
ep

ai
rs

 L
eg

is
la

tio
n

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ep

ai
rs

 
S

ec
tio

n
To

 m
on

ito
r c

us
to

m
er

s 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
R

es
po

ns
iv

e 
R

ep
ai

rs
 S

er
vi

ce

A
ll 

us
er

s 
of

 th
e 

R
es

po
ns

iv
e 

R
ep

ai
rs

 S
er

vi
ce

R
es

ul
ts

 re
po

rte
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

m
on

ito
rin

g.
 H

ea
d 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 re
pa

irs
 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
em

en
t

C
O

N
S

/3
0/

05
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

C
on

tro
l A

ge
nt

s 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

S
ur

ve
y

O
ng

oi
ng

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s

H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s

To
 fo

llo
w

 u
p 

on
 is

su
es

 ra
is

ed
 in

 
20

03
/0

4 
C

us
to

m
er

 S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

 a
nd

 id
en

tif
y 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
ac

tio
ns

; a
nd

 in
fo

rm
 a

ge
nt

s 
of

 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

P
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
ag

en
ts

, a
 

gr
ou

p 
of

 1
5 

ag
en

ts
 a

tte
nd

ed
; 

go
od

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

an
d 

co
ns

en
su

s 
on

 m
an

y 
is

su
es

H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

To
 

in
fo

rm
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 
ac

tio
ns

Fo
ru

m
 h

el
d 

at
 C

iv
ic

 
O

ffi
ce

s 
w

ith
 lu

nc
h 

- 
£5

0.
00

C
O

N
S

/3
1/

05
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ro

to
co

l 
R

ev
is

io
n

S
ep

-0
5

H
ea

d 
of

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
H

ea
d 

of
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

an
d 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 

S
er

vi
ce

s

P
or

tfo
lio

 o
f P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ge

nt
s 

w
ho

 
w

or
k 

re
gu

la
rly

 w
ith

 E
FD

C
 

P
ar

is
h/

To
w

n 
C

ou
nc

ils
 d

is
tri

ct
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

to
 c

he
ck

 c
om

m
en

ts
 

fro
m

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
s 

to
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r u
pd

at
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ot
oc

ol

N
on

e
C

ou
nc

il 
13

.1
2.

20
05

Fo
ru

m
 h

el
d 

at
 C

iv
ic

 
O

ffi
ce

s 
w

ith
 lu

nc
h 

- 
£5

0.
00

Page 56



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
  

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO
M

ET
H

O
D

C
O

N
S

/0
1/

06
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 
20

06
/0

7 
20

08
/0

9

Ju
n-

05
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 M
an

ag
er

O
ffi

ce
 o

f D
ep

ut
y 

P
rim

e 
M

in
is

te
r

To
 c

on
ta

ct
 v

ar
io

us
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 o
n 

pr
op

os
ed

 
st

ra
te

gy
. T

o 
as

si
st

 in
 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 fo

rth
co

m
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

.

Th
os

e 
pa

rtn
er

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
as

si
st

in
g 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 in
 it

s 
H

om
el

es
s 

fu
nc

tio
n.

 R
es

ul
ts

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 w

er
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

w
ith

 
do

cu
m

en
t

R
es

ul
ts

 o
f S

tra
te

gy
 w

ill
 b

e 
pa

ss
ed

 to
 fo

rth
co

m
in

g 
C

P
G

.  
W

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
fo

rth
co

m
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 w
he

n 
th

is
 is

 m
ad

e 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 d

oc
um

en
t

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

to
 th

e 
ab

ov
e

C
O

N
S

/0
2/

06
S

to
ck

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
– 

W
ic

kf
ie

ld
s,

 
C

hi
gw

el
l (

S
ta

ge
 

1 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n)

Fe
br

ua
ry

 –
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6

C
ab

in
et

H
ea

d 
of

 
H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s

To
 c

on
su

lt 
re

si
de

nt
s 

(fo
rm

al
ly

) o
n 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

t o
n 

a 
tra

ns
fe

r o
f 

W
ic

kf
ie

ld
s 

an
d 

its
 te

na
nt

s 
to

 
H

om
e 

G
ro

up
 L

td
 (W

ar
de

n 
H

ou
si

ng
), 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
a 

m
aj

or
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
to

 g
o 

ah
ea

d.
 

A
ll 

se
cu

re
 a

nd
 n

on
-s

ec
ur

e 
te

na
nt

s 
of

 W
ic

kf
ie

ld
s

N
o.

 o
f r

es
po

ns
es

 re
ce

iv
ed

 
17

(1
00

%
)-

 N
o.

 o
f t

en
an

ts
 “i

n 
fa

vo
ur

” 1
2(

70
.6

%
)-

 N
o.

 o
f 

te
na

nt
s 

“n
ot

 in
 fa

vo
ur

”  
0 

   
   

   
   

  
N

o.
 o

f t
en

an
ts

 “n
ot

 s
ur

e”
 a

bo
ut

 
th

e 
tra

ns
fe

r  
5(

29
.4

%
)  

S
ev

en
 

te
na

nt
s 

di
d 

no
t m

ak
e 

an
y 

co
m

m
en

ts
, w

hi
ls

t 1
0 

re
si

de
nt

s 
di

d 
m

ak
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
.

P
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y 
w

ith
 

de
ta

ile
d 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

t. 
A

 
qu

es
tio

n 
an

d 
A

ns
w

er
 

S
es

si
on

 w
as

 a
ls

o 
he

ld
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
pe

rio
d.

C
O

N
S

/0
3/

06
H

om
el

es
s 

E
xi

t 
S

ur
ve

y
M

ar
-0

6
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 M
an

ag
er

A
S

A
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s

To
 c

on
ta

ct
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n,

 
N

or
w

ay
, H

ou
se

, B
ed

 a
nd

 
B

re
ak

fa
st

 a
nd

 S
A

FE
, 

en
su

rin
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

Fa
m

ili
es

 o
w

ed
 a

 d
ut

y 
to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

un
de

r t
he

 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ct
 

19
96

 p
t V

11
. M

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
s 

w
er

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
d

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
. R

es
ul

ts
 

an
al

ys
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
w

er
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

. A
ls

o 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 in
 fo

rth
co

m
in

g 
H

om
el

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

.

B
y 

pe
rs

on
al

 c
on

ta
ct

, 
fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s,
 a

nd
 

te
le

ph
on

e 
co

nt
ac

t. 
£1

,4
75

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

6

Page 57



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
  

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO
M

ET
H

O
D

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

6

C
O

N
S

/0
4/

06
H

om
el

es
s 

E
xi

t 
S

ur
ve

y
M

ar
-0

6
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 M
an

ag
er

H
ou

si
ng

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 

D
iv

is
io

n

To
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 p
os

ta
l s

ur
ve

y 
of

 
pe

op
le

 o
cc

up
yi

ng
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fo
rm

s 
of

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t 
un

de
r t

he
 te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ct
 1

99
6 

P
t V

11

R
es

id
en

ts
 a

t B
ro

ok
 H

av
en

, 
N

ew
 S

ta
rt,

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 
R

es
ul

ts
 w

er
e 

po
si

tiv
e.

 
M

aj
or

ity
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 w

er
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
id

ed

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
. R

es
ul

ts
 

an
al

ys
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
w

er
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

. A
ls

o 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 in
 fo

rth
co

m
in

g 
H

om
el

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

.

B
y 

po
st

 to
 ta

rg
et

ed
 

gr
ou

p.

C
O

N
S

/0
5/

06
H

om
el

es
s 

E
xi

t 
S

ur
ve

y
13

-2
4 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 M

an
ag

er
H

om
el

es
s 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
nd

 
H

om
el

es
s 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
of

fic
er

s

To
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 s
ur

ve
y 

on
 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 
se

ek
in

g 
A

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
as

si
st

an
ce

 o
n 

a 
ho

us
in

g 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 th

ey
 w

er
e 

fa
ce

d 
w

ith

A
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f p

ub
lic

 
se

ek
in

g 
he

lp
 w

ith
 th

ei
r 

ho
us

in
g 

di
ffi

cu
lty

. P
os

iti
ve

 
re

sp
on

se
. M

os
t p

eo
pl

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 g

iv
en

H
ou

si
ng

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 
D

iv
is

io
n

P
re

pa
re

d 
fo

rm
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

re
tu

rn
ed

 a
t 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

in
te

rv
ie

w

/C
O

N
S

/0
6/

06
S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
's

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
S

ch
em

e

24
-A

pr
-0

6
R

ou
nd

hi
lls

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 H

ea
d 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s

To
 a

dv
is

e 
th

e 
R

ou
nd

hi
lls

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 
th

e 
S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
's

 e
st

at
e 

at
 

th
ei

r A
G

M
 o

f p
ro

gr
es

s 
on

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

's
 

Fl
at

s.
 

In
vi

ta
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

R
ou

nd
hi

lls
 

R
es

id
en

ts
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
A

G
M

 is
su

ed
 to

 a
ll 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

R
ou

nd
hi

lls
 E

st
at

e,
 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
fla

ts
 a

t 
S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
's

, i
nv

ite
s 

is
su

ed
 

by
 th

e 
R

ou
nd

hi
lls

 
R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

em
be

rs
.

N
o 

re
su

lts
 re

co
rd

ed
 –

 O
ra

l 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 Q

&
A

 s
es

si
on

 
on

ly
. F

ee
db

ac
k 

gi
ve

n 
to

 th
e 

S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

's
 P

ro
je

ct
 T

ea
m

 a
nd

 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t m
an

ag
er

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

m
ee

tin
g.

 N
o 

ac
tio

n 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

an
d 

no
 re

su
lts

 to
 

re
po

rt 
on

 th
is

 o
cc

as
io

n

O
ra

l p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
on

ly
C

os
t –

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 

m
ee

tin
g 

al
lo

w
an

ce

Page 58



R
EF

SU
B

JE
C

T
D

A
TE

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ED
  

B
Y

C
A

R
R

IE
D

 
O

U
T 

B
Y

PU
R

PO
SE

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
ES

U
LT

S 
R

EP
O

R
TE

D
 

TO
M

ET
H

O
D

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 R

EG
IS

TE
R

 2
00

6

C
O

N
S

/0
7/

06
S

to
ck

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
– 

W
ic

kf
ie

ld
s,

 
C

hi
gw

el
l (

S
ta

ge
 

2 
B

al
lo

t)

A
pr

il 
- M

ay
 

20
06

H
ea

d 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

E
le

ct
or

al
 

R
ef

or
m

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

sc
ru

tin
iz

er
s)

To
 b

al
lo

t r
es

id
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

D
oc

um
en

t (
as

 
am

en
de

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

S
ta

ge
 

1 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n)
 o

n 
a 

tra
ns

fe
r 

of
 W

ic
kf

ie
ld

s 
an

d 
its

 te
na

nt
s 

to
 H

om
e 

G
ro

up
 L

td
 (W

ar
de

n 
H

ou
si

ng
) t

o 
en

ab
le

 a
 m

aj
or

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ch

em
e 

to
 g

o 
ah

ea
d.

To
ta

l n
o.

 o
f t

en
an

ts
 

ba
llo

te
d 

- 1
6.

   
N

o.
 o

f b
al

lo
t 

pa
pe

rs
 re

ce
iv

ed
  -

 1
4 

  
(8

7.
5%

 o
f t

ho
se

 b
al

lo
te

d)
.  

N
o.

 in
 fa

vo
ur

 o
f t

he
 tr

an
sf

er
 

- 1
1 

(7
8.

6%
 o

f t
ho

se
 w

ho
 

re
sp

on
de

d)
. N

o.
 n

ot
 in

 
fa

vo
ur

 o
f t

he
 tr

an
sf

er
   

   
  3

 
(2

1.
4%

 o
f t

ho
se

 w
ho

 
re

sp
on

de
d)

H
ou

si
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r, 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
S

ec
re

ta
ry

 o
f S

ta
te

. 
To

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 to
 th

e 
S

ec
re

ta
ry

 
of

 S
ta

te
 th

at
 a

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f s

ec
ur

e 
te

na
nt

s 
w

er
e 

in
 fa

vo
ur

 o
f a

 
tra

ns
fe

r t
o 

W
ar

de
n 

H
ou

si
ng

. 
C

O
M

S
 S

ys
te

m
 –

 R
ep

or
t t

o 
H

ou
si

ng
 P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r –
 M

ay
 

20
06

Fo
rm

al
 b

al
lo

t

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:  C/078/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:   13 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:  Environmental Protection. 
 
Subject:   Gambling Act 2005 – Adoption of Statement of Principles and 

Consequential Changes to the Licensing System. 
 
Officer contact for further information:  John Gilbert   (01992 56 4062).  
                                                                    Jim Nolan   (01992 56 4083). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:          Gary Woodhall  (01992 56 4470). 
 
Recommendations: 
 

(1) That the Statement of Principles made under the Gambling Act 2005 be 
recommended to the Council for adoption; and 

 
(2) That the functions outlined in the Statement of Principles be delegated to 
the Licensing Committee. 

 
Gambling Act Statement of Principles: 
 
1. The Gambling Act 2005 modernises the legislation governing gambling by creating a 
single regulatory body, the Gambling Commission, and giving responsibility for licensing 
premises where gambling takes place to local authorities, making them designated Licensing 
Authorities for the purposes of the Act.  Each Licensing Authority must, in respect of each 
three-year period, starting in January 2007, publish a “Statement of Principles” before the 
beginning of each period. 
 
2. This report deals solely with the establishment of this Statement of Principles and the 
delegation of authorities.  There are likely to be resource implications for Environmental 
Services due to the increase in the number of licenses administered, and there may be 
implications for the Policy Unit and Legal & Administrative Services should a significant 
number of applications receive representations. 
 
3. The Statement of Principles must describe how the Licensing Authority will promote 
the licensing objectives set out in the Act, these are: 
 
(a) The prevention of gambling being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with 

crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 
 
(b) Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
 
(c) The protection of children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling 
 
Following extensive consultation (see later section on consultation) the Statement of 
Principles has been developed and can be viewed on the Council’s website or in the 
Members Room.  
 
4. It is important for members to note that, like the present arrangements for the 
Licensing Act 2003, conditions or restrictions can only be applied where they are relevant to 
meeting the licensing objectives set out above.  All other conditions will be illegal and 
challengeable in the Courts.   Furthermore, objections (“representations”) are restricted to 

Agenda Item 15

Page 61



what the Act defines as “responsible authorities” or “interested parties”.  This means that 
representations can only be considered if they are received from: 
 
(a) “Responsible authorities”: 
 
• the police authority; 
• the fire authority; 
• the local planning authority; 
• the authority responsible for the protection of children; 
• the authority responsible for health & safety at work; 
• the Gambling Commission; 
• HM Customs and Excise; and 
• Any other person prescribed by regulations of the Secretary of State; or 
 
(b) “Interested parties”: 

 
• a person or persons living in the vicinity; 
• a person involved in a local business; and 
• a body or person representing them (although, in the case of the Gambling Act, an 

elected Member can be an interested party on the basis of their elected status). 
 
If no representations are received, or they are not associated with one or more of the 
licensing objectives, an application must be approved. 
 
The Licensing Committee: 
 
5. The Act states that all matters relating to the discharge by a Licensing Authority of its 
licensing functions are to be delegated to its Licensing Committee and, accordingly, that 
committee must discharge those functions on behalf of the authority.  This excludes the 
making of the Statement of Principles, which is a function of the Licensing Authority as a 
whole (i.e. the Council).  This places the Licensing Committee in the same position that it 
holds relative to the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
6. The current Licensing Committee will satisfy the requirements of the Act. It is 
therefore recommended that the functions set out in the Statement of Principles be delegated 
to the Licensing Committee. 
 
Constitutional Changes: 
 
7.         To accommodate the additional licences, the Constitution will require updating with 
the new delegated functions. 

.  
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action:   
 
8.         To comply with the requirements of the Gambling Act 2005 and to ensure that the 
functions undertaken by the Council are constitutionally and legally correct. 
 
Other Options For Action:  
 
9.        There is no option other than to adopt a Statement of Principles under the Act. 
 
10.      There is the option not to delegate these licensing functions to the existing Licensing 
Committee, however this would fragment licensing policy making between different decision 
making bodies, and this option has therefore been rejected. 
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
11. It is a requirement of the Act that before determining its statement, a Licensing 
Authority must consult: 

Page 62



 
 
• the Chief Officer of police for the Licensing Authority's area; 
• the Fire Authority for that area;  
• HM Customs and Excise; 
• such persons as the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of holders of 

current licences issued under existing legislation; and 
• such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of 

businesses and residents in its area. 
 
12. A list of those consulted is to be found as an appendix to the Statement of Principles 
and the comments received together with the responses made to those comments are 
attached.  
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget provision: The licenses granted under the Gambling Act 2005 are currently 
administered by other bodies. The fees will be set by statute and are as yet unavailable, but 
the implementation of the Act will result in additional income to the authority.  This may 
however be offset if it becomes necessary to increase the establishment to meet the 
additional workload. 
Personnel: The extent of the demand for licenses under the Gambling Act 2005 is, as yet, 
unknown. Any need for additional staffing resources will be the subject of a further report. 
Land: All premises licensable under the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 within the 
District . 
 
Community Plan/BVPP reference: None. 
Relevant statutory powers: Gambling Act 2005. 
 
Background papers: The Statement of Principles drafted in accordance with the Gambling 
Act 2005. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: See licensing 
objective as set out above. 
Key Decision reference (if required): Adoption of the Statement of Principles will be a key 
decision. 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



A
pp

en
di

x 
 

R
es

po
nd

er
 

C
om

m
en

t 
R

es
po

ns
e 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 T
ow

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
In

 A
pp

en
di

x 
B

, 
no

n-
co

nf
or

m
is

t 
ch

ur
ch

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
ad

de
d 

to
 th

e 
lis

t o
f c

on
su

lte
es

. 
A

gr
ee

d 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 T
ow

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
Th

e 
se

nt
en

ce
 in

 s
ec

tio
n 

5,
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 3
 “T

hi
s 

au
th

or
ity

 
w

ill 
no

t a
pp

ly
 a

 ri
gi

d 
ru

le
 to

 it
s 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g”

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

m
ov

ed
. 

Th
e 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
av

e 
re

je
ct

ed
 th

is
 re

qu
es

t 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 T
ow

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
S

ec
tio

n 
5,

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

,4
th
 l

in
e 

be
 a

m
en

de
d 

to
 r

ea
d 

“P
ar

is
h 

or
 T

ow
n 

C
ou

nc
il”

. 
A

gr
ee

d 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 B

rit
is

h 
B

oo
km

ak
er

s 
Th

at
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
be

 i
ns

er
te

d 
in

to
 t

he
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

: 
 “…

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 b

et
tin

g 
of

fic
es

 h
as

 re
qu

ire
d 

do
or

 s
up

er
vi

so
rs

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

. 
 

Th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 
w

ill
 

m
ak

e 
a 

do
or

 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
nl

y 
if 

th
er

e 
is

 c
le

ar
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

fro
m

 t
he

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f 

tra
di

ng
 a

t 
th

e 
pr

em
is

es
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pr
em

is
es

 c
an

no
t 

be
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
su

pe
rv

is
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 

co
un

te
r 

an
d 

th
at

 d
oo

r 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
is

 b
ot

h 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

an
d 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

”. 

Th
e 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
av

e 
re

je
ct

ed
 th

is
 re

qu
es

t 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 B

rit
is

h 
B

oo
km

ak
er

s 
Th

at
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
be

 i
ns

er
te

d 
in

to
 t

he
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

: “
W

hi
le

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 h
as

 d
is

cr
et

io
n 

as
 to

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r, 

na
tu

re
 a

nd
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

of
 u

se
 o

f 
be

tti
ng

 
m

ac
hi

ne
s,

 th
e 

is
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 s

uc
h 

m
ac

hi
ne

s 
gi

ve
 

ris
e 

to
 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 

co
nc

er
ns

. 
 

Th
is

 
au

th
or

ity
 

w
ill 

co
ns

id
er

 li
m

iti
ng

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 m

ac
hi

ne
s 

on
ly

 w
he

re
 

th
er

e 
is

 c
le

ar
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 s
uc

h 
m

ac
hi

ne
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
or

 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 

be
 

us
ed

 
in

 
br

ea
ch

 
of

 
lic

en
si

ng
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

 
W

he
re

 
th

er
e 

is
 

su
ch

 
ev

id
en

ce
, 

th
is

 
au

th
or

ity
 m

ay
 c

on
si

de
r, 

w
he

n 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

lic
en

ce
, 

th
e 

ab
ilit

y 
of

 s
ta

ff 
to

 m
on

ito
r t

he
 u

se
 o

f s
uc

h 
m

ac
hi

ne
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

co
un

te
r”

 

Th
e 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
av

e 
re

je
ct

ed
 th

is
 re

qu
es

t 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 B

rit
is

h 
B

oo
km

ak
er

s 
Th

at
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
be

 i
ns

er
te

d 
in

to
 t

he
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

: 
“T

he
 

au
th

or
ity

 
re

co
gn

is
es

 
th

at
 

ce
rta

in
 

bo
ok

m
ak

er
s 

ha
ve

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f p

re
m

is
es

 w
ith

in
 it

s 
ar

ea
.  

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 a

ny
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
is

su
es

 a
re

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 a

nd
 

re
so

lv
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

ar
lie

st
 s

ta
ge

, o
pe

ra
to

rs
 a

re
 re

qu
es

te
d 

to
 g

iv
e 

th
at

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
a 

si
ng

le
 n

am
ed

 p
oi

nt
 o

f c
on

ta
ct

, 
w

ho
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
 s

en
io

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

, 
an

d 
w

ho
m

 t
he

 
au

th
or

ity
 

w
ill 

co
nt

ac
t 

fir
st

 
sh

ou
ld

 
an

y 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
qu

er
ie

s 
or

 is
su

es
 a

ris
e”

 
 

Th
e 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
av

e 
ag

re
ed

 t
o 

in
se

rt 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

“T
he

 
au

th
or

ity
 

re
co

gn
is

es
 

th
at

 
ce

rta
in

 
bo

ok
m

ak
er

s 
ha

ve
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

re
m

is
es

 w
ith

in
 i

ts
 

ar
ea

. 
 I

n 
or

de
r 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ny
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
is

su
es

 
ar

e 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
nd

 r
es

ol
ve

d 
at

 t
he

 e
ar

lie
st

 s
ta

ge
, 

op
er

at
or

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
es

te
d 

to
 g

iv
e 

th
at

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
a 

si
ng

le
 

na
m

ed
 

po
in

t 
of

 
co

nt
ac

t, 
w

ho
 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

a 
se

ni
or

 
in

di
vi

du
al

, 
w

ith
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

em
is

es
 

in
 

qu
es

tio
n 

an
d 

w
ho

m
 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 
w

ill 
co

nt
ac

t 
fir

st
 

sh
ou

ld
 a

ny
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
qu

er
ie

s 
or

 is
su

es
 a

ris
e”

 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:   C/076/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:  13 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:  Leader of the Council. 
 
Subject:  Merlin Way, North Weald – Industrial Development Land Sale. 
 
Officer contact for further information:   Michael Shorten  (01992 - 56 4124). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:    Gary Woodhall  (01992 - 56 4470). 
 
Recommendations: 
 

(1) That a planning application be submitted for Class B1 (offices/light 
industrial) and Class B8 (warehouse/distribution) uses on land adjoining 
Hangar 3, Merlin Way, North Weald; 

 
(2) That, upon the grant of the above planning permission and completion 
of the appropriate surveys and property information pack, the site be offered 
for sale on the open market by the invitation of best offers for the freehold 
interest;  

 
(3) That an allocation of £20,000 be made from the General Capital 
Contingency to fund initially an environmental assessment, ground conditions 
investigations, planning consultancy and other necessary site reports, such 
that if the site is ultimately disposed of all costs incurred in this process be 
off-set against the capital receipt arising; and 

 
(4) That a further report be submitted to the Cabinet on the developers’ 
offers and schemes upon completion of the marketing exercise. 

 
Report: 
 
1. Following the successful disposal of the former Parade Ground Site, Merlin Way, 
North Weald for a housing scheme and in accordance with the Council's Asset Management 
Plan Programme for the disposal of surplus land, the last remaining plot on the industrial 
estate is being prepared for sale.  This plot, adjoining Hangar 3, comprising an area of about 
0.88 acre/0.36 hectares (see attached plan), is zoned in the Local Plan for employment 
generating development and is not considered to be suitable for residential use.  Planning 
restrictions on the hours of working apply to the Booker warehouse and taking into account 
the close proximity of the residential properties it is likely that similar restrictions will apply to 
this vacant plot.  More particularly, planning officers advise that planning permission will be 
recommended on the following basis: 
 
(a) Class B1 (offices/light industrial), or Class B8 (storage or distribution).  Class B2 
(general industry) is not considered appropriate; 

 
(b)  vehicular access to the site will be via Merlin Way only on the northern side of the   
site; 
 
(c)  no outside working or storage; 
 

Agenda Item 16

Page 67



(d)  no working or service deliveries outside 7.00 a.m. to 7.00 p.m. Monday to Friday and 
8.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on Saturday; 
 
(e)  maximum car parking:  Class B8 – one space per 150 square metres, Class B1 – 
one space per 30 square metres; 
 
(f)  transport assessment and travel plan for employees; 
 
(g)  implementation of any decontamination measures shown to be necessary by prior 
study. 
 
2. The approval of the Cabinet is sought for the proposed planning application, 
preparatory sale work, budget allocation and marketing exercise.   
 
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action: 
 
3. The proposed sale, in accordance with good practice guidelines and the Council's 
Asset Management Plan land sale programme, will achieve development of vacant land 
declared surplus to requirements and raise a valuable capital receipt.   
 
Other Options For Action: 
 
4. To retain the site pending later disposal or allocation for an alternative use or 
development. 
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
5. Consultation with Planning Services on the development possibilities for the site.  An 
outline planning application for the proposed development will be publicly advertised. 
 
6. Proposed sale included in the Cabinet's Forward Plan. 
 
Resource Implications: 
 
Budget Provision: Capital receipt from the sale of industrial development land. 
Personnel:  Valuation and Estate Management service, planning consultant and marketing 
agent. 
Land:  Industrial development land (0.88 acre/0.36 hectares), Merlin Way, North Weald. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP Reference: FPM1 – Maximise income/capital receipt. 
Relevant Statutory Powers:  Section 123 Local Government Act 1972 – best consideration 
for land and property assets. 
 
Background Papers:  Property File EV/2426. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: N/A. 
Key Decision reference (if required): N/A. 

Page 68



Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to the Cabinet  
 
Report reference:   C/077/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:    13 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:  Leader of the Council. 
 
Subject:  Langston Road Industrial Estate, Loughton – Development Proposals. 
 
Officer contact for further information:   Michael Shorten  (01992 - 56 4124). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:    Gary Woodhall  (01992 - 56 4470). 
 

 Recommendations: 
 

(1) That the Head of Legal, Administration and Estates, in consultation with the 
Leader of the Council be authorised to offer the T11 Development Site, Langston 
Road, Loughton for sale on the open market by the invitation of offers for the 
freehold interest 

 
(2) That, in addition, the Head of Legal, Administration and Estates, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council be authorised to negotiate and agree 
the principal terms for an agreement with Essex County Council for vehicular 
access rights through the T11 Development site; 

 
(3) That, conditional upon the satisfactory outcome of (2) above, the District 
Council participate in a joint marketing exercise with Essex County Council of the 
T11 Development Site and Essex County Council’s adjoining land, such marketing 
exercise to require prospective purchasers to submit separate bids for (a) T11 
alone and (b) T11 and Essex County Council’s adjoining land combination; 

 
(4) That the District Council’s Langston Road Depot be retained for the time 
being for operational purposes; and 

 
(5) That a further report on the outcome of any marketing exercise be 
submitted to Cabinet for consideration. 
 

Report: 
 
1. Several new developments have recently been completed or are under construction at 
the Langston Road Industrial Estate, Loughton. These include the Britannia Centre warehouses, 
VW and BMW vehicle showrooms, Sterling House offices, Higgins Group and Kier Group 
headquarters buildings and construction work is due to commence on a Mercedes-Benz vehicle 
dealership.  Towards the end of Langston Road, the Bank of England has reportedly agreed to 
sell the former bowls green and car park at its Britannia Sports Group for employment 
generating development. 
 
2. The Cabinet and the Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support 
Services Portfolio Holder have previously received reports on development proposals for the 
Langston Road Industrial Estate.  These reports considered the development potential of the 
Council's T11 site, Essex County Council's adjoining land and the Council Depot.  These three 
sites are as shown by black border on the plan attached as Appendix 1.    
 

Agenda Item 17

Page 71



 

3. Planning permission was granted to the Council on 11 October 2006 for Class B1 
(offices/light industrial), Class B2 (general industry) and Class B8 (warehousing and distribution) 
on the T11 site.  An Environmental Assessment, a Traffic Impact Study and other surveys were 
commissioned in support of this planning application.  The planning consent includes standard 
conditions together with the following: 
 
(a) no more than 20% of the site shall be used for Class B8 warehousing/distribution; 
 
(b) highway improvement works off Langston Road; and 
 
(c) contributions towards highway works (£100,000-£150,000), the Broadway Town Centre 
Enhancement Scheme (£25,000) and estate signage. 
 
4. Negotiations have progressed with Essex County Council Property Services on the 
principal terms for vehicular access rights through the T11 site to facilitate development of the 
County's land-locked site.  Although agreement has not yet been reached on the proportion of 
the sale proceeds payable to the District Council, the backbone of the transaction has 
provisionally been negotiated, as summarised later in this report. 
 
5. Given the progress preparing the T11 site for development, decisions are now required 
as to whether to market the site for sale separately or to offer it in conjunction with the Council 
Depot and/or the adjoining land owned by Essex County Council. 
 
T11 Development Site: 
 
6. The T11 Development Site, situated between the Council Depot and the Seedbed 
Centre, has a frontage location on Langston Road.  It comprises a gross area of approximately 
2.6 acres/1.0 hectare.   
 
7. To generate a rental income whilst the District and County Councils have investigated 
the future development possibilities for their sites, the District Council has let a plot comprising 
1.50 acres/0.60 hectares within the T11 site to Galliard Homes Limited on a short-term basis for 
car parking.  This company owns the former OCE premises (now known as Sterling House) 
opposite the T11 site, which has been refurbished to provide offices and warehouse 
accommodation for the company's own occupation and part let to external occupiers.  The two-
year lease excludes renewal rights, generates a rental income of £26,000 per annum and 
expires on 6 March 2007. 
 
8. A Civil Engineer's report has been commissioned on the feasibility of creating an access 
roadway through the site to serve the County Council land.  That report considered four potential 
routes; the preferred route through the T11 site is shown approximately on the plan attached as 
an Appendix. 
 
Essex County Council Land: 
 
9. The County Council's potential development land, comprising a net developable area of 
about 4.5 acres is situated to the rear of Prospect Business Park and the Seedbed Centre, as 
shown on the attached plan.  This site is at a lower level than the existing developments in 
Langston Road and also that of the T11 site.  It was originally part of the River Roding flood 
plain, however, since the building of the M11 motorway it appears to be remote from the 
remainder of the flood plain in this area. 
 
10. This site is identified in the Local Plan for Business/General Industrial purposes, 
however, it is effectively land-locked, vehicular access is potentially only obtainable via the 

Page 72



 

District Council's T11 site or land (previously used as a bowling green) within the curtilage of the 
Britannia Sports Ground. 
 
11. The site has also been identified as being suitable for a new Waste Transfer Station, 
Civil Amenity Point and Materials Recycling Facility.  A plot of approximately 0.9 hectares/2.25 
acres would be required for this purpose. 
 
Council Depot: 
 
12. Constructed in the mid 1980's, this development provides offices, stores and workshop 
facilities for a range of Council services and external contractors.  The total floor space amounts 
to 32,633 square feet/3032 square metres upon a site having an area of 2.8 acres/1.8 hectares. 
 
13. Council Services occupying the Depot include: 
 
• Fleet Maintenance – workshops including MOT facility; 
• Grounds Maintenance DSO – workshops and offices; and 
• Museum Service – storage of artefacts. 
 
External contractors in occupation include: 
 
• Women's Royal Voluntary Service (WRVS) - Meals-on-Wheels Service; and 
• Cory Waste Management (CWM) - Refuse Collection Service (offices, workshop and 

parking). 
 
14. The WRVS accommodation is let on the terms of a lease excluding renewal rights and 
incorporating a rolling 12-month break clause.  CWM occupy their floor space by virtue of the 
management contract granted by the District Council.  This agreement obliges the District 
Council to provide the contractor with suitable depot accommodation within the District to 
service the refuse collection contract. 
 
15. Currently, the freehold value of the Depot site with the buildings used for industrial/ 
business purposes is about £2.2 million.  As a site suitable for redevelopment with the benefit of 
planning consent for Class B1 (light industry/offices), Class B2 (general industry) and for Class 
B8 (warehousing), the current land value is in the region of £2 million assuming suitable ground 
conditions and other development considerations. 
 
16. The Building Cost Information Service Building Costs Index indicates that the cost of 
replacing the existing Depot accommodation would be about £3 million. This estimate 
disregards the cost of purchasing the necessary land. 
 
Planning and Development Potential: 
 
17. The T11 site, ECC land and Council Depot are identified in the Local Plan as suitable for 
employment development – Class B1 (light industrial/offices) and B2 (general industry) – and, 
possibly, for Class B8 (warehousing). 
 
18. The T11 site could be developed on its own being particularly suitable for a Prospect 
Business Park type high quality office/light industrial scheme.  However, taken together with the 
adjoining Council Depot and ECC land there is scope for a comprehensive development 
scheme. 
 
19. The County Council has requested that the two Councils unite to bring forward a joint 
sale to achieve a comprehensive development in the area.  To this end, negotiations are in 

Page 73



 

progress on the principal terms for vehicular access over the T11 site.  These negotiations have 
produced a provisional agreement for the Cabinet's consideration leaving only the proportion of 
the sale proceeds to be agreed.  The principal terms may be summarised as follows: 
 
(a) the District Council to grant a vehicular access route of adequate width and service 
routes through the T11 site for construction works of both infrastructure and buildings and for the 
subsequent use of the County Council land; 
 
(b) on completion of the sale of the County Council's land, the County Council shall pay a 
premium to the District Council equal to the sum of: 
 

(i) a proportion (under negotiation) of the open market value of the County Council's 
land as evidenced by the offer accepted for the sale of the land; 

 
(ii) such increased costs as incurred by the District Council as a result of an 
increased specification or length of access road constructed on the T11 site to permit 
vehicular access to the County Council's land;  and 

 
(iii) the market value of that area of the T11 site sterilised as a result of the access 
road; 

 
(c)       the County Council to pay to the District Council a proportion (under negotiation) of any 
overage payable for the development of the County Council's land;  
 
(d). to expedite the sale process, it is not considered necessary for a specific legal 
agreement to be drawn up prior to the marketing as long as the two councils are agreed that 
such an agreement will be completed simultaneously with the exchange of contracts for onward 
sale of the two sites;  however, it will be prudent to document the agreed terms and the 
calculation of payments by an exchange of correspondence in advance; and 
 
(e) the County Council require that sufficient land be reserved for a possible Waste Transfer 
Station within its site. 
 
20. Whilst the Depot is an operational asset, it is now appropriate to consider its 
development potential and possible disposal as part of a comprehensive scheme.  Clearly, to 
decant the various occupiers to alternative premises will delay any sale and this should be 
measured against any benefits of assembling a larger site for disposal. 
 
21. The land fronting Langston Road may have potential for retail warehouse development 
(Class A1) and there is known market interest from national operators willing to pay up to £1.5 
million per acre for good sites with the benefit of planning consent for this purpose.  However, 
the present formal planning policy position is that such a proposal would be contrary to the Local 
Plan and Government advice.  As a landowner, if the Council wanted to support retail 
warehousing it would be likely to lead to any planning application being called into a Public 
Inquiry. 
 
22. Any planning application will have to contend with supplying a detailed retail assessment 
and a detailed transportation assessment.  These will be expensive and will have to reflect on 
the Council's previous rejection of food retail by Tesco's on land at Langston Road.  Advice from 
developers' advisers suggests that a budget of at least £250,000 should be allocated to 
vigorously pursue an application through the appeal process.  The Head of Planning Services 
advises that the national picture of appeal decisions on this sort of proposal has been mixed in 
recent times.  
 

Page 74



 

23. Langston Road has become a new focal point for the main vehicle dealerships with 
Volkswagen and BMW occupying prominent sites.  A Mercedes-Benz showroom is at the 
planning stage and there is known market interest from other dealerships.  To facilitate an 
employment generating development, the Finance, Performance Management and Corporate 
Support Services Portfolio Holder directed at his 20 February 2006 Portfolio Holder Briefing that 
the Council's planning application for the T11 site shall not include vehicle showrooms and that 
a restrictive covenant be included in any sale prohibiting this use or retail warehouse 
development. 
 
Land Values: 
 
24. To put the development proposals into a financial context, the site values may be 
summarised as follows: 
 

Development T11 Site 
£ 

Council Depot 
£ 

Combined Sites 
£ 
 

Light/General 
Industrial/Office/Warehouse 
 

1,950,000 2,100,000 4,050,000 

Vehicle Showrooms 
 

2,080,000 2,240,000 4,320,000 

Retail Warehousing 
 

3,900,000 4,200,000 8,100,000 

 
25. Joint T11 Site and ECC Land Disposal: 
 
 £ Notes 

 
T11 Site Sale  
 
Add 
 
ECC Payment to EFDC for 
diminution in value and 
additional road costs 
 
add 
 
Proportion (circa 25-30%) of 
market value of ECC land 
 
add 
 
Possible future overage 
payments (circa 25-30%) from 
development of ECC land 
 

1,430,000 
 
 
 
 520,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 50,000 
 
 
 
 
 300,000 

For sale as 2 plots – net developable area circa 
2.2 acres 
 
 
Assumes current unproven development value of 
ECC land exceeds diminution in value of T11 site 
 
 
 
 
Currently without planning consents or site 
surveys 
 
 
 
Payable as site developed 
 

Total Capital Receipts 2,300,000 Assume 5 year development programme 
 

 
26. These figures are very indicative and may not be considered as formal valuations.  

Ultimately the value of the sites will be determined by the appropriate planning 
consents, site surveys and prospective purchasers bids. 

 
 
 

Page 75



 

 
 
Land Disposal: 
 
27. Strategic decisions are now required as to whether the District Council: 
 
(a) offers the T11 site for sale as a separate plot for development;  or 
 
(b) concludes negotiations with the County Council on the principal terms of vehicular 
access rights through the T11 site and participates in a joint marketing of the two sites.  If 
marketed on a joint basis, prospective purchasers could be invited to submit separate offers for 
the T11 site alone for the Cabinet's consideration; 
 
(c) includes or excludes the Depot in these development proposals.  Having a 105-metre 
Langston Road frontage, the Depot could be developed separately in a later phase; or 
 
(d) pursues a planning application for retail warehousing or vehicle showroom development 
(Class A1).  Irrespective of whether the Depot is included or not, an overage clause could be 
incorporated in the T11 site sale.  In this way, the Council would benefit from future payments if 
planning permission were granted for retail warehousing or vehicle showrooms and the 
consequent enhancement in land value.   
 
28. The Leader of the Council has visited the sites and concurs with the recommendations at 
the beginning of the report as the best way forward to achieve a comprehensive development in 
the area. 
 
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action: 
 
29. The implementation of the recommendations will assist the two Councils to promote a 
major development scheme providing large-scale employment opportunities and significant 
capital receipts. 

 
Other Options Considered And Rejected: 
 
30. The recent development of the Langston Road Industrial Estate as a business centre 
and the latent demand for development sites in this area suggests that it is an appropriate time 
to bring these sites forward for development.  Retention of these sites for future development is 
an option but no longer considered appropriate. 
 
31. Whilst a retail warehouse development would produce the highest land value, a planning 
application for this use is not considered appropriate as current planning policy is opposed to 
such development in this location.  To protect the Council's position it is recommended that an 
overage clause be incorporated in the sale as described in paragraph 27 (d) above. 
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
32. Development proposals for the T11 site and ECC land are under discussion between the 
two Councils and with interested developers. 
 
Resource Implications: 
 
Budget Provision:  Capital receipt and possible future overage from the sale of a major 
development site.  Planning consultancy, environmental assessment, ground conditions 
investigations and marketing agents' costs. 

Page 76



 

Personnel:  Valuation and Estate Management Service, planning, environmental and property 
consultants. 
Land:  Depot, T11 development site and ECC land, Langston Road Industrial Estate, Loughton. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP Reference:  FPM1 – maximise capital receipts. 
Relevant Statutory Powers:  Section 123 Local Government Act 1972 – best consideration for 
land and property assets. 
 
Background Papers:  Property file EV/844 and planning application EPF/1450/06. 
Environmental/Human Rights/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None. 
Key Decision Reference (if required): N/A. 
 
 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:  C/079/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:  13 November 2006. 
 
Portfolio:  Customer Services, Media, Communications and ICT. 
 
Subject:    Re- Use of Public Sector Information Regulations and ICT. 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Ian Willett   (01992 - 56 4243). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:   Gary Woodhall  (01992 - 56 4470). 
 
Recommendations: 
  
 (1) That requests for public sector information in which the Council holds 

the copyright be considered and made available for re-use in accordance with 
the adopted policy; 

 
 (2) That the attached draft policy based on a case by case review of 

requests be approved with a view to implementation on 1 January 2007; and 
 
 (3) That the Head of Research and Democratic Services be authorised to 

include appropriate scales of fees and charges in the policy. 
 
Report: 
 
1. This report sets out a draft policy for the re-use of public sector information held by 
the Council in which the Authority holds the copyright.  Such a policy is not obligatory.  
However, the Council needs to determine how it will respond to any request and this would 
be difficult without a policy.  It is proposed that arrangements to allow re-use should be 
established by means of the policy, which reflects the requirements of the regulations. 
 
2. The Cabinet will appreciate that these regulations, through the charging regime, allow 
opportunities for income generation. By the same token, the regulations envisage that 
persons who receive the information will make a conscious decision to apply to the Council 
for permission to re-use it. 
 
3. In respect of the charges, it is proposed that the task of setting the various scales be 
delegated to the Head of Research and Democratic Services for inclusion in the report to the 
Cabinet.  The report has been considered by the Constitutional Affairs Standing Scrutiny 
Panel and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
  
Statement In Support Of Recommended Action: 
 
4. The Re-Use of Public Sector Information Regulations allow local authorities to licence 
the re-use of information which they hold and which may infringe copyright.  The Council has 
no policy in place at present and in order to be able to respond to applications for re-use of 
licences, this needs to be put in place. 
 
Other Options For Action: 
 
5. The Council does not have a policy but it will make the task of dealing with re-use 
applications easier if there is one.  The alternative is to have no policy but this will not give 
clear advice to potential applicants. 
 
 

Agenda Item 18

Page 83



Consultation Undertaken: 
 
6. Overview & Scrutiny; Head of ICT. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget provision: Nil. 
Personnel: From existing resources.  Provision is made in the regulation of licences to re-
use information for the Council's costs to be recovered. 
Land: Nil. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP reference: Nil. 
Relevant statutory powers: Data Protection Act 1998, Freedom of Information Act 2000, 
Re-Use of Public Sector Information Regulations 2005. 
 
Background papers: Nil. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: The regulations 
make specific reference to decisions not discriminating between applicants. 
Key Decision reference (if required): N/A. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 84



1 

APPENDIX 
 
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
RE-USE OF PUBLIC SECTOR INFORMATION - POLICY 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Re-use of Public Sector Information Regulations 2005, (here referred to as ‘the 
Regulations’) came into effect on 1 July 2005.  They encourage the re-use of public 
sector information for which the public authorities listed in the regulations hold the 
copyright.  

1.2 These regulations apply to Epping Forest District Council, and this policy sets out 
how they relate to requests for re-use of information for which the Council holds the 
copyright. 

1.3 The Regulations derive from EU Directive 2003 / 98 / EC on the re-use of Public 
Sector Information, which also came into force on the 1 July 2005. 

2. WHAT IS MEANT BY RE-USE? 

2.1 When the Council releases information which has been requested under legislation 
such as the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA), a person may ask if the 
information can be re-used, perhaps for commercial purposes.  Without permission 
this might breach the Council’s copyright.  The regulations are concerned with this 
management of such re-use. 

2.2 Nothing in the Regulations affects rights of access under other legislation, such as 
the FOIA, Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) or the Local Government 
Acts.  

3. WHAT ARE THE BASICS OF THE REGULATIONS?  

3.1 The Council is not obliged under the regulations to make public sector information 
available for re-use.  However, if the Council decides to do so this has to be done in 
accordance with the Regulations.   

3.2 Thus the Regulations provide for: 

(a) a 20 working day period (beginning from the first working day after the 
request is received) for the Council to respond to a request for re-use, 
although this period may be extended where the information requested is 
extensive or complex; 

(b) a licence fee if re-use is not to be free; 

(c) a licence must not restrict competition; 

(d) exclusive licensing arrangements will not be allowed except for the provision 
of a service in the public interest and such arrangements shall be published; 

(e) the Council must make available to the public any conditions and any 
standard charges for re-use; 

Page 85



2 

(f) information for re-use must be made available by the Council electronically 
where possible and appropriate;  and 

(g) the Council must not discriminate between different applicants making 
requests for re-use for comparable purposes. 

4. COPYRIGHT 
 
4.1 The Regulations do not affect the Council’s copyright. 
 
4.2 The supply of documents (for example under the FOIA) does not give any person a 

right to re-use them in a way that would infringe that copyright (for example, by 
making copies, publishing and issuing copies to the public or to any other person). 

 
4.3 Brief extracts of any of the material may be reproduced without the Council's 

permission, under the fair dealing provisions of the Copyright, Designs and Patents 
Act 1988 (sections 29 and 30) for the purposes of research for non-commercial 
purposes, private study, criticism, review and news reporting, subject to an 
acknowledgement of the Council as copyright owner.  Wider re-use however requires 
our permission. 

 
4.4 The Council may choose to allow re-use under licence, imposing conditions on the 

re-use of the information to ensure it is not used in a manner inconsistent with its 
copyright; and may also decide to charge a re-use fee. 

 
5. EXEMPTIONS TO RE-USE 
 
5.1 Once the Council agrees to make categories of information available for re-use, the 

grounds for refusing to provide any of the specific information of that type are limited 
to the following: 

(a) the activity of supplying the document is one which falls outside its public 
task; 

(b) the document contains content in which relevant intellectual property rights 
are owned by a third party; and 

(c) the content of the document is exempt from access by virtue of the FOIA. 

6. LICENCES AND CONDITIONS FOR RE-USE 
 
6.1 Any applicant who asks for permission to re-use information for which the Council 

holds the copyright who has their request agreed in principle will be informed of the 
conditions and other licence terms.  The Council will issue licences, which include the 
conditions for re-use, on a case-by-case basis. 

 
7. CHARGING 
 
7.1 The Regulations state that, when allowing re-use, public authorities can make a 

‘reasonable return on investment'.  In calculating a licence fee the Council will take 
into account the following: 

Page 86



3 

(a) whether Epping Forest District Council’s intellectual property (ie information) 
has a commercial value and the appropriate level of fee which is appropriate 
for each individual case 

(b) an hourly charge for staff time in making the requested information available 
to the applicant for re-use in accordance with the following rates depending 
on the seniority of the member of staff who is required to manage the request:  

(c) the cost of materials in respect of copying or printing (black & white or colour)  

7.2 These charges will be subject to regular reviews. 

8. INFORMATION ASSET LIST 
 
8.1 Where permission for re-use is granted, the Council will add the information type to 

an Information Asset List.  The list will therefore provide a source of reference to 
applicants as to the type of information which has been approved for re-use.  We will 
also link this asset list to the Council’s Freedom of Information Publication Scheme. 

 
9. MAKING APPLICATIONS FOR RE-USE 
 
9.1 An application to re-use information for which the Council holds the copyright 
 must: 

(a) be in writing; 

(b) state the name of the person making the request; 

(c) give an address for correspondence; 

(d) specify the document requested; and 

(e) state the purpose for which the document is to be re-used. 

9.2 An application must be sent to the Head of Research and Democratic Services, 
Epping Forest District Council, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping, Essex CM16 4BZ. 

 
10 COMPLAINTS 
 
10.1 An applicant may complain to the Council about how their request for re-use has 

been dealt with, eg about any licence fee charged.  This will be dealt with under the 
Council's Compliments and Complaints Procedure. 

 
10.2 The complaints procedure under the regulations works in the same way as the 

complaints procedure under the FOIA, except that the Office for Public Sector 
Information (OPSI) is the ultimate authority to which to complain.  An applicant can 
complain to OPSI only after a complaint has been considered by the Council (as the 
authority to which your request for re-use of information was made) and if the 
response to the complaint is not considered satisfactory by the person who 
requested the information. 

 
10.3 Any subsequent complaint to OPSI must:  

Page 87



4 

(a) be in writing; 

(b) state the nature of the complaint; 

(c) include a copy of the written notification from the Council of its response to 
the complaint; and 

(d) be lodged with OPSI before the end of 28 working days commencing with the 
date of receipt of the Council’s response. 

10.4 The contact details for OPSI are: 
 

The Standards Division 
OPSI 
Admiralty Arch 
North Side 
The Mall 
London 
SW1A 2WH 
 

11. UNAUTHORISED RE-USE 
 
11.1 The Council reserves the right to review and pursue cases of unauthorised re-use. 
 
 
 

Page 88



Agenda Item 20

Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee  - 17 July 2006
	8 Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee - 25 September 2006
	9 Free Saturday Car Parking
	Free Saturday Car Parking Appendix

	10 Potential Development for Affordable Housing - Pike Way, North Weald
	11 Acceptance of Tender - Communal Cold-Water Storage Tank Replacement Programme 2006/07
	12 Springfields Improvement Scheme - Repurchase of Leasehold Flat
	13 Provision of Social Housing Grant To Provide Affordable Housing - The Quarter, Chipping Ongar
	14 Consultation Plan 2006/07
	Consultation Plan 2006-07 Appndx 1
	Consultation Plan 2006-07 Appndx 2
	Consultation Plan 2006-07 Appndx 3

	15 Gambling Act 2005 - Adoption of Statement of Principles and Consequential Changes to the Licensing System
	Gambling Act 2005 - Stmt of Principles Appendix

	16 Industrial Development Land Sale - Merlin Way, North Weald
	Industrial Development - Merlin Way, NW Appndx.doc

	17 Development Proposals - Langston Road Industrial Estate, Loughton
	Langston Road Development Appndx 1.doc
	Langston Road Development Appndx 2.doc

	18 Re-Use of Public Sector Information Regulations and ICT
	Re-Use of Public Sector Information Policy

	20 Leisure Management Contract - Epping Sports Centre

